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SENATOR DEAN FLOREZ, CHAIR:  Okay, let’s go ahead and get started.  Obviously the interest in this hearing, and people in the audience speak to the fact, that it’s important to have as much dialogue and hearings on these in the times when people can come.  And it’s not to say that 2:00 on a Tuesday in the middle of the week is hard for people to come to, but I think it is for people who are working, so we’re going to continue to have these types of hearings in the evening.  You may remember a year ago we had a similar hearing in Shafter, at the Veterans Hall.  I wanted to thank the mayor and the council members of Wasco for allowing us to utilize this particular facility.


Tonight we’re going to be looking at the rapid growth of dairy operations in northwest Kern County, and especially in the communities of Shafter and Wasco. 


And again, let me say, it gives me great pleasure to reconvene the Select Committee on Air Quality, and to be back in Kern County and, for the first time, in the city of Wasco, for this particular hearing.


Now you may recall that last year we had a hearing based on people’s thoughts on legislation regarding dairies and air quality.  As you know, the governor did sign five substantial air quality bills.  Senate Bill 700 particularly dealt with the issues of dairies and mitigation of dairies, and we’re very happy the governor signed that.


Let me also say, that after reading the Bakersfield Californian, in the numerous articles, that this community could get … and I’ll use a Californian’s phrase … a lot more dairy cows in the next several months.  And in fact, up to 104,000 cows could settle near Wasco.  And that number, as you probably know, makes the Borba and Vanderham projects look like very small dairies.  To put it in another perspective, 104,000 cows is about 32,000 tons of manure and about 39,000 tons of urine all within an 8-mile radius.  And the question is, where does it go, and what do we do with it?  It will be one of the questions, hopefully, we will be talking about tonight.


As we learned from last year’s hearings, and the passage of the bills I mentioned earlier, cleaning the air is extremely important for this particular committee.  And I know from the many valley residents that I represent, and particularly dairies impact on that air quality is something that we will talk about at length tonight.


According to the Valley Air District Officials, there are certain types of emissions from dairy cows that may indeed contribute as much pollution as cars and trucks.  And more cows obviously means more pollution, which, obviously, has an impact on many of our children’s lungs in Kern County, as well as the valley’s ability to meet federal and state air quality requirements.  And I don’t have to tell you that our asthma rates, particularly here in the valley, are three times the national average.


With the passage of the bill I mentioned earlier, SB 700, and the recent court decisions, the new dairy operations will be required to implement technologies that can reduce their impact on air quality.  An example of this technology obviously is the biodigester.  And in the legislation that we authored and was signed by the governor last year, that will be a topic that we will want to explore tonight as well.  And the question there will simply be:  With the biodigester technology, how much air quality are we really cleaning; and how much is left to remain; and how are we going to deal with that remaining amount?


Tonight we will also look at the impact of these new dairies on the communities of Shafter and Wasco, particularly, as well as whether or not these new technologies I’ve mentioned will really take care of the pollution that they emit.


As I have said in the past hearings, I want to be very clear on this, that we believe that we can have a very strong economy and at the same time, clean the air.  And the same can be said about tonight’s hearing.  Dairies are obviously a very important part of our local economy, and I believe we can have both a healthy dairy industry, and hopefully, healthy lungs.


The goal of tonight is to deal with these important questions that I’ll just pose to you now, and this is really the goal of the hearing, is to try to answer these particular questions:  

1)  How many tons of air pollution will these 100,000 new dairy cows bring to our community; and how difficult will it be for our air district to meet federal air standards with this additional pollution?

Tonight we’ll also hear about the impact on water quality from these dairies.

2)  What technologies are available to our dairy operators to control air pollution; and how successful are they at mitigating emissions?

3)  How can we assure local elected officials … and I know there may be some disagreement on what is local, but at least from this perspective … how can we make sure that our city council members, our city managers, our school district officials, have a role in determining where these dairy operations are ultimately located?

With us tonight, obviously, to answer most of these questions are representatives from the Kern County Planning Department, Supervisor Ray Watson, officials from the cities of Shafter and Wasco, Air quality and water quality experts, and representatives from the Dairy Industry, and environmental groups.

There will be time, no doubt, for public comment.  If you wish to speak at the end of this hearing I believe we have a sign-up table for you to put your name down and at the end of the hearing we will have remarks.

And I will say that as we begin this hearing, I do appreciate, again, the city of Wasco allowing our facilities to be utilized.  As you can see, we have our sergeants from Sacramento here.  Everything that is said is on the record, just so you know.  And transcripts will be made available of this hearing probably in three weeks.  So if you would like to receive a transcript, please log onto our website at Senator Dean Florez.  I think most of you know the California Senate website, and you will be able to download a copy of this particular transcript.  So I would ask the sergeants to be very careful as the witnesses come up, to mark, if you will, the tape, so we know who exactly is speaking, and so we can make sure that this transcript is available.

That being said, let’s go ahead and start with the Planning and Permitting Processes.  We have Ted James, Director of Kern County Planning Department.  Thank you for being with us, Ted.  We appreciate it.

TED JAMES:  Thank you, Senator Florez.  Again, the Planning Department appreciates an opportunity to come before this committee and offer some comments.

I think what I want to do is just a couple of things, and I’ll be brief in my comments.  But I want to set the stage for what these dairy proposals are, and I want to talk a little bit about the environmental review process, the conditional use permit process, and importantly for the people that are here, the opportunities for public involvement in that process.

Number one, over the last several months we’ve had an influx of dairy proposals coming into us.  And we’ve had specifically, nine proposed dairies and one dairy calf feedlot being proposed in an area northwest of Wasco.  There is a map over here that is an aerial photo, and on that, the blue areas are proposed dairies, the yellow areas are existing dairies on that map. 

We do not have complete applications on these dairies.  They are all subject to a preliminary review stage right now.  And because of that, I don’t have precise figures yet on the number of cows, the size, the acreage of the dairies, and whether or not there are going to be other requests that may come in, in addition to these nine dairy proposals.  There could be some additional ones.  This is an evolving process that we’re going through.

You should also be aware that in addition to those –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Additional above what we have currently?

MR. JAMES:  That is correct.  There may be some others in addition to the ten dairies that I’ve mentioned in that area northwest of Wasco.

In addition, there is a Petrissans Dairy on Bear Mountain Boulevard, south of this community.  And there is the Vanderham Dairy, that many people are aware of, that is going through a public review process for a revised environmental document and it’s out for public comment.  The comment period on that ends on July 30th.  And there’s a tentative hearing scheduled for August 24th before the Board of Supervisors.

Now, important thing, numbers, and I think people will be interested in this.  And you have to remember, these are tentative numbers and it could go down, or it could go up.  As we go through this process we’ll be clarifying those.

Based on all of these dairies that I’ve mentioned, including Vanderham and the Petrissans Dairy, there’s a total of both milk cows and support stock, 113,000, not 797 cows, that we’re dealing with.  If I just focus on the area in the Shafter/Wasco area of these proposals, it’s 110,073 milk cows and support stock that we’re looking at.  Keep in mind that currently we have 55 active dairies in the county.  Our estimate is that that’s approximately 280,000 cows in those 55 dairies.  And there are two other permitted, but yet to be built, dairies and that would add another 11,800 cows.

And obviously the big issue as we go forward are, what does this mean to our environment?  What does this mean to surrounding land use as we go through this process?

What I want to do is focus on what’s involved in our public process.  And it’s both a conditional use permit, it’s a land use permit (it goes through a public hearing process), and there are conditions of approval if it’s approved that are attached to it.  And those conditions can be enforced through our zoning ordinance enforcement provisions through complaints that we receive.

There’s an environmental impact report that will be prepared for these dairies.  And it’s required to be prepared by the California Environmental Quality Act.  And what staff has proposed to date to do to manage these, you could do this in one of several ways:  You could do one big EIR addressing all of these dairy requests and addressing the cumulative effects and evaluating each dairy, or you could do it in another approach, and this is a grouped approach, where you do fewer EIRs, not individual EIRs, but fewer EIRs that group numbers together to make the evaluation more manageable.  Whether we do one big EIR or we do four, as an example, EIRs for all these proposals, we have to address the cumulative effects of all the dairy proposals that are existing, as well as what’s proposed out there in addressing what are the overall effects of adding these additional dairies to the environment.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me stop you for a minute to ask you a question on the EIR.  So we have grouped and individual, and I guess my question would be, given that you could do a grouped approach or individually, does that mean you wait for every single dairy, in essence, to come into what would be called the group?  So one dairy may be far more advanced in where they’re at; the last dairy may be not as advanced in terms of the EIR process?  Or waiting for the weakest link in this before we start the process?  Is that slowing down the process?  Speeding it up?  From a dairy perspective, not from our perspective.

MR. JAMES:  Senator, what we’re trying to do right now is assess where all of these dairy applicants are at in the process, and are they ready to actually start the process?  So that’s one of the things that we’re still evaluating in determining how to structure these dairy proposals.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  So I guess the question would be, then the decision between the grouped and individual … if four dairies say, We’re ready to go today, and two dairies say, We may not be ready for two years, does that then slow down the four dairies who are ready today, if you’re going to do one EIR in the grouped process?  I guess that’s my question.

MR. JAMES:  What we’ve proposed to the applicants in lieu of doing separate EIRs is, to group the EIR proposals by consultants.  Because, there are basically four consultants that are involved in these dairy proposals, and several of them are involved in doing more than one dairy proposal.  So what we’ve done is, initially talked to these applicants about grouping them together.  And what we’d be doing is, giving them very explicit instructions on how to do the cumulative analysis; how to evaluate the various dairy issues.  So that whether you look at one EIR, or all the EIRs together, the analysis is done in the consistent, uniform fashion.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, let me just ask you a simple question.  And maybe I’m not thinking about it correctly.  But if you’re asking the consultants to the dairies to do the environmental impact of what those dairies bring, is there an opportunity for them to give an answer that the dairies would like, versus you doing an independent analysis of what the cumulative effects would be?

MR. JAMES:  To answer that –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that being paid by the county or the dairies?

MR. JAMES:  The dairies ordinarily … you can do it in one of two ways.  You can do it as one big EIR where the county’s involved in hiring the consultant and the applicants pay for it.  Or, if you use the model of doing separate EIRs, the applicants hire the consultants, but the county manages the products to make sure that they’re uniform and consistent with our standards.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Which offers the better amount of independence for the county in terms of evaluating the data?  Which offers you more, if you will, independent data?

MR. JAMES:  I think either way can work.  And that’s going to be an issue that the Board of Supervisors takes up next Tuesday afternoon at 2:00, because we’re responding to a referral from the board then.  One of the issues they’re going to be dealing with is, whether we should do one big EIR, or several smaller ones.  So that’s going to be an important issue that the Board is going to be taking up related to this.  

Real quickly, in terms of the CEQA process:  I want to let the public know that –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So that’s the EIR; now we’re moving to CEQA.

MR. JAMES:  Yes.  The EIR (Environmental Impact Report) is a part of the CEQA process.  The environmental impact report, it’s an informational document to help the decision makers.  In this case, the planning commission and the board, in making decisions.  People need to be aware that conditional use permits go to the Planning Commission, and they can be appealed to the Board of Supervisors.  So both the Planning Commission and the Board of Supervisors can be involved in this public process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can I ask you a question on the Planning Commission?

MR. JAMES:  Sure.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who is on the Planning Commission?  How many members?

MR. JAMES:  There are five members.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are there any members from this area?

MR. JAMES:  There are, right now –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are there any members that don’t live in Bakersfield?

MR. JAMES:  Yes.  In eastern Kern County we have representatives that are on it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Five?  One from –

MR. JAMES:  Supervisor McQuiston has a vacancy right now that he’s filling for one position.  And the other members are from the Bakersfield area.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how long is the vacancy from Mr. McQuiston available?

MR. JAMES:  Just recently, because of an illness of one of our commissioners.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is Mr. McQuiston’s representative here?  No.  Could you ask Mr. McQuiston if maybe would it be possible to appoint someone from the west side so they would have somewhat of a viewpoint on the Planning Commission?

MR. JAMES:  I can pass that along.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s just a suggestion.  But I mean, he can make his own appointment, but it seems as though, given planning decisions, particularly dairies, and we’re sitting on this side of town today, it seemed to make sense that a representative on the Planning Commission might be from the area which is going to get 100,000 cows.  It’s just a thought.

MR. JAMES:  Okay.  I should point out, those are just proposals now.  They’re not going to get 100,000 cows.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But you mentioned process.  You mentioned a process of which CEQA can be, in essence, looked at the Planning Commission and the Board, correct?

MR. JAMES:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  And then the Planning Commission makes a recommendation to the board?

MR. JAMES:  No.  They could have a final decision, unless it’s appealed by any party to the Board of Supervisors.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So even more so, would be my issue.

MR. JAMES:  But I’ll be happy to pass that along, Senator, to him.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.

MR. JAMES:  On the EIR processI just wanted to touch on opportunities for public involvement in this process.

Number one, I’ll be interested in getting the sign-up list, if I can, from this meeting.  And if there are people, as we go forward, that are interested in being involved in the process, they can let the Planning Department know.  We’ll keep them involved.

Once we finalize the project descriptions (and that process is still going to be ongoing over the next several weeks) to have a good understanding of how many dairies, how many cows, what are the methods of waste disposal, and other issues that will be addressed.

The first step in the environmental impact report process is doing a notice of preparation of an EIR.  And that process involves a 30-day review process.  And members of the public and agencies provide us comments on the dairies and addressing those.  And it will be looking at each dairy, as well as the cumulative effects of all dairies, as we go through this analysis. 

In addition, once a draft environmental impact report is prepared, it goes out for a 45-day public review.  That will be an important opportunity for the public and agencies to provide comment on the process of the environmental impact report.  

As I said, the EIR is an informational document.  It will address endangered species, groundwater, flooding, air quality, a variety of different issues will be included in that process.

Once we get comments back, we’re required by CEQA to respond to all the comments that have been submitted.  And that goes into a final environmental impact report.  And again, that information is an information document that goes to the Board of Supervisors or the Planning Commission so that they can render their decision based on that information.  

And I told you about the appeal process.  What I view as being the big issues in looking at these dairy proposals are going to be --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you a question before you go onto that.

MR. JAMES:  Sure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of this CEQA notice, you mentioned a 45-day comment, 30 days even prior to that.

MR. JAMES:  Notice of preparation, right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How does the average person know about that?  What do they have to read?  How do they have to find out if they’re concerned about commenting?

MR. JAMES:  We use several ways:  1)  The grapevine is a good way.  And having people give us mailing lists who want to be noticed of the proposals.  We will keep lists associated with each of those proposals.  We use a newspaper notice.  And a lot of times people say, Well I don’t follow those legal portions in the newspaper.  But what we importantly do is, we use the press.  We use the media to put press releases out to let people know.  And the media has been very good about providing information to the public and keeping them informed about these various proposals.  So that’s the process we’re going to use to keep people involved.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Because I think the notice is one thing that, obviously, we’re interested in.  Let’s go through those real slowly.  The grapevine, what is that?

MR. JAMES:  The process … we have several people that are interested in this process and they will ask us, Can you put us on a mailing list for particular projects?  We will put them on a mailing list.  They will tell their neighbors.  And a lot of times we get additional people that want to be put on mailing lists.  That’s what I mean by that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So if the city council of Wasco or Shafter wanted to put their residents who would be three or five miles from a dairy on your mailing list, would the county accommodate that?

MR. JAMES:  That’s going to be something I’m going to have to look at and see how many properties are involved.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  _______ that’s what I mean.

MR. JAMES:  But I’ll certainly look at that and see what we can do about finding good ways of working with the city staffs in addressing that issue.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, so that’s one.  And the other you mentioned, the press.  And not necessarily the articles, but the notice in the press.  Is that a legal requirement?

MR. JAMES:  There is a legal requirement to put notices of hearings and environmental processes in newspapers of general circulation.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how early, legally, are you supposed to do that?

MR. JAMES:  Legally, it’s generally ten days prior to a public hearing, as an example, but usually it’s three weeks prior that they actually go in.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Let me ask you a live real case.  In Vanderham, was anything ever put into the Shafter Press? 

MR. JAMES:  Well I can’t respond to that right now, because I don’t have those records here, Senator.  But I’d be happy to respond to that later.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would it surprise you if I told you that nothing was put into the Shafter Press?

MR. JAMES:  I’m not going to respond to that until I look at our records, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you plan on maybe putting in the Wasco or Shafter Presses on these particular dairies?

MR. JAMES:  Our intention would be, use both the Shafter and Wasco papers.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I’m not trying to get Roy Patrick anymore business.  I’m just trying, if you will, figure out, when you say, “notice,” and say, “newspapers,” I do know that there are people who do not receive and do not read 

The Californian, many of which live in my district.  Some of them look in the local press, and there are various types of notices in the local press.  I’m just wondering if we have ever done anything when it comes to large dairies, particularly, in the local papers.

MR. JAMES:  We always use the local papers.  We always emphasize using the local newspapers of general circulation.  That’s been our policy.  We just don’t use the Bakersfield Californian, because we want to reach people.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And then let’s go to the last thing that you mentioned; the press releases.  In the real life example of Vanderham, was a press release sent out for that particular dairy?

MR. JAMES:  For various stages, Senator, you’re asking me things that I’ll have to go back and look at the records, which was two years ago.  I’ll be happy to respond to that for you and provide you that information.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  If you could get that back to us, we’d like to include it as part of the record.  I mean, I’m just wondering, that you’re mentioning all of these things, the grapevine; I see, my own viewpoint, more people need to be on that other than word of mouth.  Two, you mention the legal requirement of newspapers, and I’m wondering if local newspapers, particularly in small communities, are utilized.  That would be another piece of information I’d like.  And then on press releases, maybe using Vanderham as an example, of whether or not a press release was sent during any of those processes that you have mentioned that might somehow alert one that says, Whoa, there’s a press release that the county has just sent out and this is something that we want to be involved in, not 30 days after we find out, but early on.  So those would be the three pieces of information.

You can go back to your points, sir.

MR. JAMES:  And again, public input is so important to this process.  It’s not effective … in all of those comments we want to make sure are implemented as part of this process that goes forward.

Now, real quickly.  A couple of things to be aware of.  What we see as the issues, and you’re going to have speakers talking about some of these:  Land use compatibility; odors; flies; groundwater quality; air emissions; transportation issues on roads and the adequacy of the roads; and cumulative effect issues.  Those are the issues that I see as the big focus that we’re going to be looking at.

One thing to make the committee aware of, is on June 22nd, the Board of Supervisors referred a report that they wanted a report from the Planning Department –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, this is it.  June 22nd, the tracking page.

MR. JAMES:  Right.  Related to the large number of dairy proposals in the Shafter/Wasco area.  On July 13th, we will be doing a report back to the board.  Tomorrow afternoon, that report will be available for public review.  If anybody is interested in it, they can contact the Planning Department and we can make a copy available.  

We have several things that were in that referral.  Just real briefly, Senator:  Addressing whether proposed dairies that submit land use applications have any grandfather or vesting status; responding to whether a single environmental impact report should be prepared for the multiple dairy request; or doing several EIR proposals with grouped dairy application requests; evaluating whether or not dairy standards and technology standards to minimize environmental effects are needed.  In other words, do we need more technology introduced into conditions of approval for the projects.  And then the fourth one is, reporting on the process that would be followed if we were to reactivate the dairy technical committee, which was in effect and provided recommendations to the board a couple of years ago related to that process.  

Again, there will be a public hearing on that at 2:00 on July 13th at the Board Chambers.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And that is a very important hearing.

MR. JAMES:  That’s a very important hearing.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did you send a press release out for that?

MR. JAMES:  I have contacted a variety of different media about this issue.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Press release?

MR. JAMES:  Not in a press release.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any notice in the paper?

MR. JAMES:  I expect there to be notices in the paper about this before the hearing.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But on the grapevine.

MR. JAMES:  I expect that The Californian and other newspapers, such as the Shafter and Wasco papers will be covering this story very closely, as well as the TV media and the radio media.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. JAMES:  One other thing to point out and then I’ll conclude my comments:  We’ve been having discussions with the communities of Shafter and Wasco related to the development of a proposed buffer zone.  We’ve had these discussions over the last several years.  We had a recent discussion with the two communities.  I view it as being a very productive discussion.  My expectation from talking to the city managers of both cities are, they going to be submitting a proposal to create a dairy exclusion zone around their communities.  I know they may be talking about that later in the meeting.  But, my commitment to those cities is that I will take that to the Board of Supervisors as expeditiously as possible.

That concludes my comments.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  I have some questions that I have for you.

MR. JAMES:  Sure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I want to ask city managers a question about the exclusion zone, but you’re the Planning Department and you’re the director so let me ask you:  When you hear the word, exclusion zone, what do you think of?

MR. JAMES:  When I hear exclusion zone, my understanding is, that no dairies would be permitted in this area that’s unincorporated.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And would any of the dairies that we would be talking about tonight be included in that?

MR. JAMES:  It depends on what the final proposals are from the cities, because they were still working on what those boundaries would be.  You might want to ask that question of them.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I will.  That’s why I said I’m going to ask them, but I wanted to get your perspective on that.

Let me just ask you a couple of questions.  We got a lot of emails from a lot of folks throughout this area, and I just want to make sure their questions are answered for the record.  And I think they’re just questions that I think anybody would ask.

The first is, why do you think so many dairies want to locate in this area of Kern?  I mean, why are dairies coming to Kern?  A standard question.

MR. JAMES:  My sense is, from talking with the various dairy applicants, is they want to be approximate to the Southern California area.  I’m presuming trucking costs, maybe transportation costs, may be an issue.  I wonder why some don’t go to areas that don’t require a conditional use permit process.  But I think proximity to Southern California is certainly an issue.  And why they’re all coming at this point in time, I don’t know.  You should maybe ask the Dairy Industry people that question.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you ask them that when they come in?

MR. JAMES:  I talk to the Dairy Industry people.  I talk to people that are concerned about dairies all the time, because I want to have a good sense of what their issues are as we go through this process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So what do they tell you?  Why are they coming here?

MR. JAMES:  I think some of them, especially in this area northwest of Wasco, many of them have bought the properties several years ago and they used it for feed stock, for dairies in Tulare, or other areas, and some of them are moving up from the Chino area and they apparently feel it’s time to move because of development pressures in the Chino area.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I wanted to make sure I got on the record.  And you mentioned some of the other counties I represent, Fresno County, Tulare County, Kings County, much more relaxed permitting process, if you will, than Kern.  Why not there?  Why go to a place where there’s lawsuits?  Where there is controversy?  Where, you know … we just got through with Borba, and that was 28,000 cows, and this is 100,000.  I mean, why would a dairy want to come here at this place and this time, given kind of where we’re at between buffer zones and the county asking for more technology, I mean, why would they not go to Kings or Tulare or Fresno?  Just an opinion.  I know you don’t have a definitive answer on that.

MR. JAMES:  Kings and Tulare do have rigorous standards similar to our standards.  But there are other counties still in California that don’t have public hearing requirements as part of their process.  I don’t know.  There could be a variety of factors, and I’m not going to speculate related to that.

Again, I think transportation issues may certainly be one.  A lot of dairies, they like to locate near some of their fellow dairymen.  That could be a cultural thing.  There could be a lot of factors involved.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How would you define best possible practice for a dairy as you start to look at it from a planning perspective?  All the things that you mentioned earlier; water, air, technology.  How would you view that particular … what is the best possible practice for the industry?

MR. JAMES:  For any of the activities involved?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  What are you looking at?

MR. JAMES:  Certainly, location is approximate to any sensitive uses.  I think cumulative effect is important.  What are all these dairies together mean in terms of effects?  I think manure management is one of the biggest issues.  From an air quality standpoint and from a groundwater standpoint, those are very important.  Many of these applicants are telling us they’re planning on using anaerobic digesters.  I’ll wait and see when the applications come in, if they’re actually proposing that.  But I think those are important things. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does the county have the ability to require, prior to approval, anaerobic digesters?  If you wanted to.  If you just said, “You know, we want to cut down on the air quality issues, we’re going to require this.”  Without the state, without SB 700, without anybody else telling you that, could you make that a requirement for dairies coming in the county?

MR. JAMES:  We could, and that’s going to be an issue that’s going to be addressed next Tuesday afternoon at the Board hearing.  And certainly, we don’t want to duplicate regulations of other agencies.  So for instance, you’re going to hear from the air districts shortly, we’re very interested in their best available control technology process which will talk about using digesters and other technology, and that’s going to be very important, to have the coordination with other agencies.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when you talked about a cumulative effect earlier, all of the issues, you’re taking a holistic view of these, not just a, if you will, single view as you look at the entire grouped dairy EIR.  So, some dairies, for example, in a grouped EIR might, say, half of them might be using anaerobic digesters, the other half may not.  And so as you start to look at that grouped approach, you’re going to be looking at it in totality, or the dairies that are really doing more are the kinds that people may approve, and the other ones who aren’t, how do you look at all these different approaches.

MR. JAMES:  We are encouraging them to use higher standards.  And the Board of Supervisors on Tuesday, is going to give direction related to whether they want to incorporate higher standards into the permitting process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And what would happen if these dairies are approved and you expected certain mitigation processes to occur, and they never did?  What would happen?  What is the recourse of the county?

MR. JAMES:  There is an enforcement process through our zoning ordinance where if they do not comply with conditions, and once they start up a dairy, we ensure that they are in compliance with all conditions, but if they fall out of compliance, we would undertake an enforcement process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Who catches them?

MR. JAMES:  I’m glad you brought that up, because one of the things that is a referral that we’re working on developing, is a dairy inspector for Kern County.  And that dairy inspector will enforce all the conditions of approval related to dairies.  And we expect that proposal to go to the Board of Supervisors in September.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’re heading right into where I’m heading.  How many dairy inspectors do we have today?

MR. JAMES:  We don’t have a dairy inspector; we rely on the state for inspection right now.  And that’s one of the reasons why the Board wanted to look into that issue about reestablishing a dairy inspector.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So we don’t have a dairy inspector now?

MR. JAMES:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And do we have an idea then how many we’re going to need given the additional dairies that we are planning for?

MR. JAMES:  That’s something that the Environmental Health Services Department is looking at in terms of the number of dairies and what a staff, or several staff people, could do, and they will be providing a report to the Board of Supervisors on that issue.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just two more questions for the record, if we could.  The map, I guess we referred to, to your right, showing existing proposed dairies, how many square miles does that include that we’re looking at there?

MR. JAMES:  Well you had mentioned eight square miles, I believe, and –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well don’t use me, you’re the expert.

MR. JAMES:  In looking at that, I don’t know right now, because I don’t have … all I’ve got are preliminary proposals in.  I don’t know the extent of all the spreading areas that will be included, and that’s why I’m hesitant to give you a response to that until I get accurate information related to that.  My sense is, that the actual dairy sites are going to be on approx … each dairy site averages around 100 acres, but then they have 2,000 or 3,000 acres of spreading area depending on the number of cows they have to meet water quality control board standards.  So we’ll be clarifying that as we get the formal projects in.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The reason I ask, and you mentioned the 2,000 to 3,000 acres, and I guess if we were to look at all the proposed, I guess my addition, or mathematics, tell me that we would probably need about 25,000 acres just to take the manure?  And I guess, where would we find that near Wasco or Shafter?

MR. JAMES:  Senator, they may not.  If they’re using anaerobic digesters or other standards, they may not need all that area.  And I think the technology that’s employed is going to be critical to whether or not they’re spreading the effluent … they need to spread the effluent over large areas.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  So that was my question then.  So you’re going to be looking at it as though if you don’t have the land, than you’re going to require anaerobic digesters.  If you do have the land, then anaerobic digesters may not be a requirement.  It’s got to go somewhere, right?

MR. JAMES:  We’re going to look at all aspects of the proposed use.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But it’s going to equal out, right?  Somehow, someway, with this spreading issue, that’s going to equal out somewhere?

MR. JAMES:  If they’re using a technology that involves spreading, the requirement with state standards are going to be imperative, and we will include conditions to address that issue.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Just a couple of more questions from my constituents.  They come up with the best questions, I think.

In terms of the area that I’ve just mentioned and the square footage, or square mileage, I used eight miles.  I guess we’re not sure.  Would this be the most dense concentration of dairy cows in Kern County if all the proposed areas were indeed approved?

MR. JAMES:  I think this would be equivalent to what we have along Bear Mountain Boulevard south of the metropolitan area.  There are quite a few dairies along there.  They’re spread in a lineal pattern along Bear Mountain for several miles, whereas this is more concentrated in one area.  And I think that’s probably the unique aspect of this proposal is, they’re all centered kind of in one area.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  And unique meaning, they’re centered in one area and that’s good?

MR. JAMES:  I don’t know, because we need to go through the environmental process and see what kind of issues come up.  And again, that’s dependent on getting the specific project proposals so I know how much area they’re going to have for each dairy.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I guess this would … the question I mentioned, if proposed indeed, 100,000 cows do come into the area, total cows or cattle that we have in Kern County now is about 189,000?

MR. JAMES:  280,000.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  280,000, and so this would be 100,000.  If we have 280,000 now, this would be 100,000.  Or roughly, a third more, something like that.

MR. JAMES:  I feel this as being a significant expansion of the dairy herd and that’s why we need to do an environmental impact report.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And is there any estimate in terms of the flies, manure concentration, that’s all you’re going to be looking at, correct?

MR. JAMES:  We’ll be looking at all of those areas, as well as the cumulative effects of those.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And the Planning Commission will be looking at that as well?

MR. JAMES:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you will talk to Mr. McQuiston about maybe appointing a west side representative on the Planning Commission?

MR. JAMES:  I will talk to him about that tomorrow.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, great.  Thank you.

MR. JAMES:  Thanks, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thanks, Ted.  Appreciate it.  As usual, very informative.  Mr. Warner, Permits Manager, San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.

DAVE WARNER:  Good evening, Senator.  Thank you very much for inviting the Air District to this very important hearing.  I am going to talk about air permitting requirements for dairies, and also a little bit about the effects of dairies on air quality in the San Joaquin Valley.

I am the director of Permit Services for the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.  And for those of us who may not be familiar with what the Air District does and what we are, we are a government agency that’s responsible for cleaning up the air in the San Joaquin Valley.  Basically we have to meet the state and federal standards for air quality, and these standards are health based.  So when we reach those levels, we consider ourselves to have healthy air.

We’re kind of stymied in our efforts in this trying to meet health based standards because we can only regulate stationary sources.  We can’t regulate mobile sources like automobiles, trucks, buses, planes, that kind of thing.  We do require new and modifying sources of air pollution, stationary sources, to control new emissions in the best available manner, and I’ll talk about that a bit more.

For existing sources of emissions we analyze where the best bang for the buck is in terms of where are the emissions from stationary sources coming, and we adopt regulations to reduce those ongoing emissions.  And we enforce this set of requirements through our permitting program.

Now there are two main pollutants I want to talk about with respect to permitting.  There’s also another one, particulate matter, that we’ll talk a little bit more when we talk about effects of air pollution.

But the two main constituents of air pollution that we want to talk about with respect to dairies are volatile organic compounds (VOCs).  I also might refer to them as non-methane hydrocarbons.  And they’re important because they combine with other pollutants in our atmosphere to form ozone, which is the main component of smog that we experience in the summertime here.  Ammonia is another pollutant from dairies that we’re concerned about.  It also combines with other pollutants in the air to form PM-10.  And this a very small particulate that is actually small enough to be able to get down into the lungs.  It’s actually PM-2.5, and I see somebody brought a nice slide up here that talks about PM-2.5 also, which is also smaller and even gets into the lungs deeper.

Permitting requirements come from the state and federal Clean Air Acts.  Both of those acts require that the Air District have permitting standards and requirements for all stationary sources that emit air contaminants with very limited exceptions.  Under that program for years, the district has under permit about 7,000 facilities, with about 20,000 permits spread between the Stockton area down through Bakersfield.

On the larger side, with more emissions, we’re talking about refineries and power plants, kind of the middle emissions wise:  Cotton gins and canning operations and other types of food processing.  All kinds of things like that.  

But then we also permit even very small sources of emissions, like gas stations, body shops, and dry cleaners.

Now until January 1st of this year, state law, as you well know, Senator, exempted all agricultural operations from air district permitting requirements.  Your bill, SB 700 removed that exemption, and since that date, we’ve been working very hard with the ag community to bring sources under permit.  The permitting threshold for agricultural operations in the San Joaquin Valley is 12.5 tons per year of VOC, or nitrogen oxides.  But for dairies the real key is their VOC emissions.

According to our emissions estimates, about 2,000 head will trigger these permitting requirements.  What that means for these larger dairies, and keep in mind so far the permitting requirements don’t extend to something that’s smaller than about 2,000 head, but for these larger dairies this means that existing dairies were to have submitted applications for some grandfathered permits.  In other words, they already have the right to operate, so we’re just bringing them under permit by July 1st of this year.  So just a few days ago.  About a week.  I mean, we have received hundreds of those permit applications.  For new or expanding dairies, those that start construction after that permit exemption went away on January 1st, these dairies have to obtain an authority to construct permit before building the dairy.

Now that’s what we’re really talking about today.  Are these new and expanding dairies.  And so I thought I’d talk really briefly about what the permitting process consists of.

First of all, the dairy operator has to file a permit application before beginning construction.  The district prepares a fairly complex written analysis quantifying the emissions from a dairy, and then making sure that they have the best available air pollution control technology, and I’ll talk a bit more about this in the next couple of slides.  And then we do an analysis of compliance with all the air pollution regulations.  If we find that a dairy will be in compliance, we’ll issue an authority to construct, and if we can’t find a dairy to be in compliance with those regulations, we have to deny that application.

And an important issue here is, that this authority to construct permit must be issued, must be received by the dairy before they can begin construction.  And that is a brand new requirement, both for the Air District and for the Dairy Industry as of 

January 1st.


So what is BACT? 


Well, it’s the best possible way to control air pollution from a given source.  We have been applying BACT requirements to all those various sources of air pollution that I talked about earlier and now we’re beginning to apply them to dairies.  It only applies to new or expanding dairies.  But BACT is the most effective air pollution control technique that is either achieved in practice, so that’s the lowest bar that must be achieved, or if something is more effective and technologically feasible and cost effective, then we would require that.  This is a very complex analysis that we’ve been doing for many years on other types of sources.


We took a proactive look at what BACT would be for dairies, and we started this actually last year, and have a draft guideline that is available for public review on our website right now.  


All kinds of manure management and controlled composting, feed management processes are included and analyzed in this document.  But one of the most controversial things that we have proposed to require of new dairies of these sizes are anaerobic digesters.  And we believe that the potential is there to get at least a 50 percent reduction of VOCs and ammonia from these types of controls.


I’ll talk really briefly about the effect of dairies on the valley air.  And whenever I talk about emissions from dairies, there’s a bit of controversy about that.  There are questions about the emissions factors that air districts use.  But I think everybody recognizes that the emission factors that are being used are the best that are available right now.  There’s a lot of technical work going on right now to analyze how accurate these numbers are, and that should be available over the next year or so.


But right now, based on these numbers, we believe the existing dairies currently emit at least 37 tons of VOC emissions per day up and down the San Joaquin Valley.  That’s not just Kern County.  That’s a lot of emissions.  You mentioned it, Senator, that’s about the same as VOC emissions, from automobiles in the valley.  So it’s a significant amount, even if it’s off by two or four times, it’s still a very large number.


The 100,000 cows that we’re here talking about today, that might be added to this area of Kern County, could add almost two tons of VOC per year, or one ton approximately with controls.  And there’s a comparison there that’s kind of significant.  That’s about the same VOC emissions that are emitted from a very major gas, fire, and power plant.  Now a power plant is going to emit other contaminants, but this is still a fair comparison.


Now effect on residents:  I think the San Joaquin Valley is well aware that we have air pollution problems.  Ozone and particulate matter cause significant health problems in the San Joaquin Valley.  They aggravate and cause asthma, bronchitis, and other lung ailments.  They actually affect the lung’s ability to take in and process oxygen.  And the health experts actually believe that our air pollution problem does cause premature death in the San Joaquin Valley.  It makes it a serious issue.  And any increase in these pollutants makes it that much harder for the Air District to do our job of cleaning up the air.


I wanted to talk a bit about effects on other valley businesses and on the existing dairy industry.


The Air District goes to great length, great expense, to analyze what are the best ways to reduce air contaminants from existing sources in the valley?  We’ve done all the easy ones.  Now we’re working on very small sources of emissions.  And this one ton a day increase that we’re talking about here in this location, effectively cancels out five of the last eight VOC control regulations that we’ve passed.  I mean, we’re getting that small increment of reduction from the rules that we’re passing onto other types of sources.


To continue that line of thought, those industries and others that emit VOCs, including the existing dairies in the San Joaquin Valley, are going to be subject to even more and more stringent control requirements to gain back those lost reductions.  And this is something we’ve faced throughout history in the air pollution business as growth happens in the valley.  The reductions that we gain mean less and less as more emissions come into.  So it’s not a new thing, it’s just something we have to deal with.


There’s also a set of federal sanctions that will kick in if we don’t reach our clean air requirements on target.  The loss of federal highway funds seems to be a big issue to the San Joaquin Valley, the local building departments, Caltrans, all those folks that rely on federal highway funds.  It’s a huge number, $2 billion in the San Joaquin Valley.


Major sources of air pollution would also face additional sanctions.  There would be some significant pollution fees for large sources of air pollution.  There would be something called, two-to-one offsets, or emissions mitigation for major sources.  Essentially that means if a major source of air pollution increases one pound a day, they’ve got to find some way of finding a two-pound a day reduction somewhere else.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how do those sources usually do that?


MR. WARNER:  They usually do that by purchasing emission reduction credits from someone that has reduced actual emissions from their operation. 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how expensive is that?


MR. WARNER:  It can be very expensive.  I think when we are going through a major power plant influx in the San Joaquin Valley, nitrogen oxides and VOCs were both going for the 20,000 a ton to 30,000 a ton.  So it’s a one-time expense, but if you want to emit one ton, it would cost you an extra $30,000.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what type of major sources do that type of thing in the Central Valley?


MR. WARNER:  Virtually every major source would have to do that; power plants, any of the oil fields, businesses, glass manufacturing, any of the big sources of air pollution.


The final rather draconian measure that is on the federal plate would be that the EPA could take over the local air program.


Now a few things that I wanted to leave with:  Our permitting authority is not discretionary in that we can’t say, no.  We set up rules and regulations, and then if sources follow those rules and regulations that are intended to be protective of air quality but still allow growth.  If somebody comes in and proposes a facility that complies with that, whether it’s a dairy or a new power plant, we say, yes.  We issue them a permit.  We don’t have the ability to say, no.


With that said, we do require BACT, we will be requiring BACT, of all these new larger dairies.  And we will, in the near future, begin working on regulations that will control the emissions from existing dairies.  And the timeframe for that is still a little bit up in the air, but it will certainly be done by 2006.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Just a couple of questions.  In terms of the dairies that we’re talking about tonight, if they are indeed actually developed, I guess the question would be, what types of controls do we expect to have in place for those dairies?  BACT would probably be one of them?


MR. WARNER:  Yes.  We would require BACT.  The question of what exactly is BACT is still a little bit up in the air.  We have not finalized our best available control technology determination.  Currently that determination would include a requirement for anaerobic digesters.  There’s always going to be the ability for a proponent to come in with something else that’s equivalent, but right now that’s what we’re requiring.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And for existing dairies?  You mentioned 2006 as being that particular timeframe.


MR. WARNER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And we’re waiting for ARB?


MR. WARNER:  That’s correct.  ARB will be coming out with a study of emissions from confined animal feeding operations, and will define what a large CAFO is.  And we’ll use that information and the experience we’re getting from the BACT analysis that we’re doing to determine what types of controls would be reasonable for existing dairies.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so that’s existing dairies in 2006?


MR. WARNER:  Correct … by 2006.  It may be accelerated.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And going back to one of your slides on anaerobic digestion; the technology.  You mentioned about a 50 percent reduction from that.  Is that correct?


MR. WARNER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I guess, given you have the power to allow for construction, is that going to be a requirement from the district that that be part of, if you will, the best available technology threshold, so therefore you don’t build unless you have anaerobic digesters?


MR. WARNER:  That’s correct.  We will not issue an authority to construct to a new dairy unless they comply with our BACT requirement, which right now looks like anaerobic digesters or equivalent.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So that will take care of about 50 percent of the “pollution” for the VOCs, right?


MR. WARNER:  That’s what we expect.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The other 50 percent, plans for that?


MR. WARNER:  The reason it’s not controlled is because it’s … or not being proposed right now is that it’s fugitive emissions.  It’s emissions that aren’t available to capture.  The manure that’s out in the coral, things that are decomposing, we don’t have an easy way of handling.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So the dairies that come in, even with the legislation that we’ve passed, create some technology, if you will, that will allow us to capture 50 percent, but probably if we wanted to reduce the pollution to a manageable amount, then … and this is a neither/nor.  I’m just trying to get a factual … the dairy not being here at all would probably be the best solution.  Is that correct?


MR. WARNER:  A dairy not being here at would definitely be the smallest amount of air pollution that we would have to deal with.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m just trying to compare.  I’m not making a value judgment.  I’m say, no dairy versus even a dairy with the legislation in, means 50 percent emissions that we would not have here.  Is that correct?  And how much tons is that a day if we were to do these dairies?


MR. WARNER:  If we were able to reach that 50 percent control, we’re still looking at about a ton a day of VOC emissions from these dairies.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  A ton a day.  And that would be a ton a day that we would have to offset in other industries?


MR. WARNER:  That’s correct.  And from existing dairies.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And those other industries, given that we are now at the threshold, would probably have to pay for expensive equipment, newer things, the other things industries pay for?


MR. WARNER:  That’s right.  We’ve been controlling existing sources, non-ag sources of VOC emissions for many, many years.  And all the easy reductions have taken place through our regulations.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So other businesses pay?


MR. WARNER:  That’s right.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the south coast—let’s talk about that because it’s one of the questions I asked Ted, in terms of why are the dairies coming here?  And it’s been said because South Coast is much tougher, if you will, given the Chino issue, that they are looking, if you will, for refuge in counties that may not, in essence, require the disposal waste more frequently.  And I believe that’s what South Coast did.


I guess the question I would have is, does the San Joaquin District have anything planned like South Coast?  So it would be almost seamless.  You know, it didn’t matter if you came from Chino to Kern County, you would be required the same type of environment, so maybe they would move onto Kings or Kern or Fresno, all the way up until, in essence, everybody plays by a rule that, in essence, cuts down on the ammonia emissions.


MR. WARNER:  Yes.  Well there’s a couple of different parts to that question.  Number one, the requirements at a new dairy, and they’re going to be new if they’re moving from Chino to here.  They’re going to be new.  They’re going to be faced with stiffer control requirements than they’re faced with in their home of Chino right now.  Our best available control technology will be more strict than the rule that the South Coast Air Quality Management District is currently reviewing and proposing for adoption.  


The ammonia control issue … I talked mostly about VOC control today, but the same technologies will be, if properly designed, will be ammonia controls also.  But we don’t have quite the same problem that the South Coast faces down there.  They have a concentrated nitrogen oxide plume that passes over Chino from the urban areas, and those nitrogen oxides combine with their ammonia to cause a problem there that we don’t have right at the moment here.  So that’s why they’re concentrating so much on ammonia.  But the same technologies are going to be effective up here.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You see it that with the concentration of quite possibly, 100,000 cows in this area that we might see such a plume, or such a similar environment for the city of Wasco?


MR. WARNER:  You know, I think the city of Wasco might even be too close to the source to experience that kind of –


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well what about the city of Shafter?  It’s eight miles away.


MR. WARNER:  Shafter, Tehachapi, it’s certainly a possibility.  It would take some pretty advanced air quality modeling to really understand that problem.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you try to model that for us?  That would be important.


MR. WARNER:  I think we’ll be looking at it.  Certainly as part of the rule development process.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is the Air District consulted in the CEQA process?  Ted mentioned the CEQA process.  What role do you play in that particular process?


MR. WARNER:  In all of these cases, we will be involved in a CEQA process.  We’re a responsible agency, and as such, are required to provide comments that will give the lead agency, Kern County, the understanding of what the air quality issues are.  And we would ask for mitigation.  We’d let the sources know the permitting requirements exist, and that we would take care of that permitting process.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So let me be real clear on this, and I think it’s an important point.  The plume.  Let me go back to that again.  And you talked about … wouldn’t maybe even deal with Wasco because it’s so close.  And it would be, maybe, Shafter or even Bakersfield, believe it or not.  They might be affected by this, as well.  Is that correct to say?


MR. WARNER:  It’s possible.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The city of Bakersfield.  Even as far as ___________ it may be?  It could be possible?


MR. WARNER:  Well it’s certainly true.  We all breathe the same air here.  And there’s even eddies in the currents in the San Joaquin Valley that carry pollution up the west side of the valley.  So that’s why it’s a unified air district that covers eight counties, because we all breathe the same air.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So from a buffer perspective, a six-mile, eight-mile, three-mile, not as important for air pollution, correct?


MR. WARNER:  That’s absolutely correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And for flies, odors, and those types of things, important?


MR. WARNER:  It’s outside my realm of expertise.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I just wanted to get you on the record on that.


The chart that we have here to your right, talks about the PM-10, or the PM-2.5 actually in our case, drifting for six or so miles.  And I guess the issue would be, we’re not sure if that is a correct portrayal until we model this very substantially, because it could be further than that, right?


MR. WARNER:  Well, PM-2.5, I mean, there will definitely be a plume of dust.  The fact is, those six miles doesn’t do it justice.  I mean, we know that PM-2.5 remains suspended in the air for many, many days, and will affect people many, many miles away.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  It wouldn’t travel over Wasco City Hall, or Shafter City Hall, it might even actually hit Bakersfield City Hall, or Tehachapi?


MR. WARNER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s all I have.  Thank you very much.  Appreciate it.  Let’s go onto the Effects.  Dave, can you stick around for one more minute.  


On the effects, just a few more questions and then we’re going to have Lonnie Wass talk about water quality, and then we’re going to hear from Michael Rucks, Larry Pearson, Danny Espitia, and John Guinn, the city of Shafter.  So let’s just go through this real quickly.


Again, on the impact.  On your chart you talked about this debate—cars/cows, which is producing VOCs and at what level?  But in terms of the new area for the district in terms of dairies, if you were to do a pollution pie, what slice of the pie?  Would it be a small slice for dairies?  A very minimal, or would it be somewhat large?


MR. WARNER:  It’s very large.  It’s potentially … if these numbers are right, potentially the number one source tied with automobiles.  So it’s about 10 percent of the pie.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, in essence, if we were to look at the emissions inventory, we’ve done the easy things.  And now, we’re adding a very large slice of the pie that might actually equal cars?


MR. WARNER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And those are based on what numbers?


MR. WARNER:  Those are based on some emission factors that come out of a very old test from 1938, I believe.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So it could be higher?


MR. WARNER:  It could be higher.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  It could be lower?


MR. WARNER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  But somewhere in between is probably the answer?


MR. WARNER:  I think that we’ll probably, based on what I’ve been hearing from the scientists, it might be somewhat lower.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Still be a large size?


MR. WARNER:  No matter where it ends up, it’s going to end up being one of the larger slices that the district has available to get further reductions.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I think you’ve answered most of my questions that I needed for the record.


You mentioned we have to meet a goal by 2010, and if we don’t meet these goals, all of the bad things happen; losing federal trans dollars.  Current businesses have to pay double what they’re paying now, something like that?


MR. WARNER:  Correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And is it correct to say that additional dairies to this county increases the likelihood that those businesses would have to pay additional fees if we don’t control.  Even if we controlled half of it, but say we were successful in mandating digesters, the additional adage, is there a thought process that people would have to pay more on that other slice of the pie that are currently paying?


MR. WARNER:  Well I think the impact would be … it’s a more sure thing that the monetary impact will be felt through the adoption of stricter and stricter air pollution reduction regulations that we have to adopt.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So for the oil industry it may mean more stringent controls and more expensive equipment?

MR. WARNER:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And for the manufacturer, more equipment, more additional controls?


MR. WARNER:  The same issue, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  For the bakery?


MR. WARNER:  Absolutely.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Dry cleaner?


MR. WARNER:  Yup.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you very much.  Mr. Wass, Lonnie Wass.  Thank you for joining us, and I know you also have a presentation.  This is on water quality.  Dairies and water quality.


LONNIE WASS:  Again, I’m Lonnie Wass.  I’m a supervising engineer with the Regional Water Quality Control Board out of their Fresno office.  


Just as an introduction to what I’m going to present, let me give a little background about the Regional Water Quality Control Board; a little background on water quality laws and policy; and then we’ll look at waste production from these proposals should it be the 104,000 that’s been reported; then, what permits proponents must receive from the Regional Water Quality Control Board.


Of course, the Regional Water Quality Control Board is the state agency charged with protecting the waters of the state for all beneficial uses.  Our authority is in the California Water Code.  It was enacted through the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act.  That can be found in Water Code Section 13,000 and following.  It requires, the development of the water quality control plans.  It requires persons who discharge waste, to file what is called a report of waste discharge, which is our application process.  In terms of the surface water discharges, the regional water boards affect the national pollutant discharge elimination system, the federal permit that is required through the federal EPA through an agreement with the state and the federal EPA.  And, of course, it requires compliance with all statewide policies and the basin plan.


State Board Resolution 6816 is commonly called the state’s anti-degradation policy.  It’s really entitled, the statement of policy with respect to maintaining high quality water in California.  It discourages degradation, but recognizes that with land uses, and there has to be some degradation, and if degradation of groundwater quality or surface water quality is allowed, then it has to be in the maximum benefit of the people of the state.  It can only occur, and this is where we differ a little bit from their district, after best practicable treatment or control is implemented.  Very similar to the district’s but a little different wording.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what does “practicable” mean?


MR. WASS:  Practicable means, able to be done.  If it can be done, it should be done.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Versus, available?


MR. WASS:  Versus, available, yes.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So practicable is a lesser standard?


MR. WASS:  I’m not sure on that.  I have reviewed the recent material by the district, and I think we’re actually very similar in what we require.


It must not cause pollution or nuisance.  Meaning, that in order to change benefices that are established in the water quality control plans, you would have to go through a planning process and say that that use is no longer attainable and will no longer be used.


This is probably not as good as Mr. James has there, but it shows locations, some of the dairies that we have heard of.  The two in the south, we actually have received reports of waste discharge for.  And then the many in the north, like Mr. James discussed.


Just in general, uses of water quality:  Any time you use water, it degrades its quality.  In terms of municipal use, through our sewer systems, it changes the quality of that water by about 300 … the total dissolve solids by about 300 milligrams per liter.  Anytime that an industry uses water, it changes it, and that varies very greatly by the type of industry.  Even when one irrigates crops, there has to be a leaching fraction in order to keep the salts from building up in the shallow part of the soil and being toxic to the crops.  So that leaching fraction would carry constituents to the groundwater, and certainly used by a dairy, degrades its quality.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can it be restored?


MR. WASS:  Can it be restored?  It’s very costly to restore that, and that’s what the South Coast basin is facing with some of its treatment processes, and you have to have an outlet for the salt.  That’s the big issue is what to do with the salt.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The salt is the issue on that.


MR. WASS:  The salt.  Nitrates will affect benefice use is certainly of domestic use because of the issues.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Can you back to that slide?


MR. WASS:  Sure.  I hope I can.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  I know there are many industrial uses.  But in general, which creates the biggest salt problem there?


MR. WASS:  Well, in years gone by, we were facing the issues of the brines from the olive processors, and are still working on closing some of those plants.  And we have salt plumes from some of the brine processors.  That’s going to be there for a very long time.  


The oil industry:  Anytime you’re pumping oil, you’re pumping a larger volume of water, and often that’s very poor quality as well.  So there’s a big source there and there are areas that groundwater has been degraded from the oil industries.  That’s a major source of salt.


One of the biggest sources of salt in our groundwater actually occurred with the bringing of new land into production.  As we developed land and brought in surface waters, the top 20 feet of the soil profile had just tons of salt in it.  And as we leached the salts out of the soil profile to make them productive, we leached out a lot of salts into the groundwater.


This shows groundwater contour maps.  This is depth to groundwater, from the Department of Water Resources for the area.  I have other information that suggests it might be a little bit shallow were—20 feet or so shallower.  But we’re talking in terms of the used groundwater of being 180 to 300 feet in the area.


We looked in our files for information we had from particular monitoring wells.  We did have information in our files from the Shafter/Wasco sanitary landfill.  So this is information out of our files.  This is their background water quality.  They actually have a perched water in that area, and the total dissolve solids are a little over 1,000 in that.  Nitrates is nitrogen arranging from 6.7 to 20.  It’s interesting to note on this, that actually the deeper aquifer is a little higher in TDS and the yet deeper aquifer than that comes down a little bit.   This suggests to me that there probably is some local recharge from the ag activities there of a surface water used for irrigation that is the source of that perched groundwater.


The one thing that it does show, nitrate levels there, on average are above the state action level of 10 milligrams per liter.  Whether or not this condition exists in the particular areas of the dairy, I do not know.  It’s for a particular monitoring location, and it may not be as expansive as that.


We do know from reports from the Kern County Water Agency that there are two areas of perched groundwater.  That the gradient in the areas are generally very flat, south to southwest.  Depth, like I reported before in the Kern County Water Agency reports, are a little bit different but in the same range—150 to 250 feet below ground surface.  If the perched groundwater exists, it exists 5 – 20 feet below the ground surfaces.


The Regional Water Quality Control Board had been using information on the production of waste from dairies for a very long time.  It was information that was gathered back in the early 1970s.  And there was more recent information coming out that suggests that the numbers were wrong.  So we asked the University of California to commission a committee of consultants to look at it.  Their final report is expected out very soon.  They are actually going to a technical editor right now, to make sure that if it’s coming out from a university, that it’s correct.


But some of the information from that report is, that one cow will produce about 17 pounds of manure a day.  That’s about a pound of nitrogen per day.  And two pounds of salt per day.  So if you take that, and not knowing whether that’s exactly correct, the 104,000, but if we looked at it in terms of the 104,000 cows, we’re talking in terms of 320,000 tons of manure per year; 19,000 tons of nitrogen per year; and 39,000 tons of salt per year.


That committee and consultant’s report looked also at management practices and what is practicable to do.  They reported that with good management practices, the application of nitrogen would be about one-and-a-half times the nitrogen requirement.  That it would have to be specifically timed to crop demand that’s both nitrogen demand, as well as the water demands hydraulically, so when the crop needs it, it would be irrigated then.  That the water from a dairy needs to be blended with irrigation water.  And that should be, six parts irrigation water, to each part manured water, to eight parts or so in order to keep it correct.  That the resulting … with that blending … with those practicable measures the total dissolved solids applied to the water would be about twice the total dissolved solids of normal irrigation water.


In terms of our water quality regulation, NPDS permits will be required for these.  They’re all sized large enough that through the new federal CAFO rule that came out in the Spring of last year, it does require the federal permit.  The federal permit requirements are really specifically charged with protecting surface waters.  Not a large issue down here in our flat valley with very little rain, but in our enacting of the state regulations, we also have to look at the groundwater degradation potential and protection of groundwater.  Implementation of the best practicable treatment or control must be implemented.  And certainly, no pollution should occur.


So in my conclusion, using water degrades its quality.  With good management, irrigated water will have about twice the total dissolved solids of normal irrigation water.  The proposals will need about 25,000 acres of land to use the nutrients with this.  


And it’s real interesting, in our calculations, that historically we’ve depended on loss of about half of the nitrogen to the air.  And what is applied to land is a result of a reduction about half of the nitrogen through the air, through the ammonia losses.


Groundwater, while I don’t have a lot of information about groundwater in the area, it’s already of questionable quality, and certainly an NPDS permit will be needed for it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  The 25,000 acres of land to use in nutrients, is that particularly geared towards the dairy proposals?

MR. WASS:  Yes.  That would be for the 104,000, would need 25,000 or so –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you participate in the CEQA process?

MR. WASS:  Yes.  The Regional Water Quality Control Board, our permits for these new facilities are discretionary permits, not like the Air Resources District.  They are discretionary permits.  And we would in turn rely on the county CEQA documents.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the reason I asked Ted earlier, in terms of land availability to dispose of waste from dairies, and you have a number of 25,000 acres, is that correct?


MR. WASS:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so part and parcel, I know the county must be looking at either, given the nitrates issue, mandating digesters so as to bring that requirement down.  So does that 25,000 acres include a digester type plan that would bring that down to a smaller amount of acreage or not?


MR. WASS:  I have a deep respect for Mr. James, but actually an anaerobic digester will not reduce the ammonia.  What it will do is change … about half of the nitrogen generated is in the ammonia form.  About half are organic sources of nitrogen.  It will break down the organics; give off gases, the methane gases; and the nitrogen will all be in the ammonia form after the digestion.


I was in Chino last week and I attended a workshop on that, and we asked this question of the designers of the digesters and the folks down there in the Chino basin.  They said that there is not that much ammonia being extracted with the methane.  Only about one percent.  So there will be actually very little reduction occurring from the digestion itself in the available nitrogen to the crops.  Now there are other measures that are designed through the Air District will help with the losses of ammonia, but the digester itself doesn’t change that very much.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And so the 25,000 acres would still stand in terms of what we would need in order to implement this particular proposal?


MR. WASS:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Cows and waste water, just to get to some of your charts that you’ve mentioned.  You mentioned, I believe, on one of your slides, two pounds per day of urination.  Is that correct?  Ten gallons a day?


MR. WASS:  Ten gallons … I don’t have particular information on that.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Ten gallons a day per cow.


MR. WASS:  That would not surprise me that it’s in that range.  I would have to defer to maybe the folks in the industry.  When you consider that a cow, in terms of milk production at 30 – 40 pounds which would be 40 pounds, would be about eight gallons.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  39,000 tons of urine.  So what’s the impact on groundwater?


MR. WASS:  Well, I mean, it carries a lot of salt.  And there will be changes occurring in groundwater from the salt.  And part of that salt, including nitrates as ammonia is applied to ground, as it’s aerated, if it’s not used by the crop, it becomes nitrate.  Nitrate is very leachable, and some nitrate will be carried with the leaching fraction from irrigation. 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does it concern you that, let’s say, 39,000 tons of urine, given what you’ve just mentioned in an eight-mile or so radius, is that as concentrated as you’ve seen it in any other industries?  Particularly in dairy industries?


MR. WASS:  There are probably some areas in Tulare County that are around that range, as well.  Kern County, by its uniqueness, has been pretty spread out, but there are probably some areas in Tulare County that are that concentrated.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And given that you said you were in Chino –


MR. WASS:  Yes, I was.  A week ago.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  What are the lessons to be learned from Chino?  What insight could you give the committee?


MR. WASS:  In Chino, it changed from an agrarian area to an urban area.  And if you drive through Chino, you don’t see them raising their own hay.  So the success of this, and this was the finding of the committee consultants as well, we’re taking feed we grow here in the valley for the most part, although there’s some imported concentrated foods like grains and such, but it’s a small percentage, we’re feeding it to cows.  And the salts that we gain from two sources.  It comes from our groundwater, because that’s what they’re using for their water supply, and it comes from the feed.  If we can get the manure back out on the land where the feed is grown proportionate to where it’s coming from, then it’s evenly distributed back there.  The problem is, you start concentrating it from a very broad area, bringing in hay from throughout the valley and into this area, and then it gets applied at a higher concentration than where it originally came from.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So the lesson in Chino is, everybody grew very quickly, became very urbanized.  And in Kern County, I think, it seems as though we’re heading very quickly in that direction of urbanization, particularly in certain parts of ag land.  And I guess my thought is, and maybe your perspective on this, is that is it fair to say that a permit for a dairy should only be as good as how much land is available to take the waste?


MR. WASS:  I believe that’s true, yes.  ________ they themselves have enough land to accept it, or they have a contract, and perhaps the term of the conditional use permit, OR permit, is only good as long as the contract with somebody is good.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So 100,000 or so cows needs about 25,000 acres of land to really make this somewhat workable?


MR. WASS:  That’s correct.  It could be more.  I base that on limited information and there maybe more required with the support stock at the facility.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  What types of controls could be used to reduce this impact?


MR. WASS:  Some of the controls would be certainly on the dairy operations itself, making sure that there is no impoundment of water and leaching of water into the corrals.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Impoundment meaning, lagoons?


MR. WASS:  Well, in terms of the corrals themselves; the slope that will runoff the corrals.  And then when you get to the lagoons, for the balance of applying nitrogen when it’s needed, there has to be storage.  The lagoons can be lined, and we actually have commissioned another consultant to look at that issue.  Our regulations are very minimal at this time.  But lagoons can be lined.  And then it’s a matter of balancing the waste to the crop requirements and making sure that some will pass through, making sure you’re not affecting the groundwater quality and benefices.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So if you’re a dairyman, you don’t have the land yourself, it’s best to get contracts with people who could utilize it?


MR. WASS:  That’s correct.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of nutrient management plans, you mentioned that also, how does that work and how is that helpful?


MR. WASS:  The nutrient management plan … and this is being developed on a federal level right now … but nutrient management plan is a matter of knowing how much nitrogen particular is in your water, and then as you pump, making sure that you measure that and you’re balancing out to your crop and amount of land.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you mentioned the 39,000 tons of urine; the salt issue as being an issue; the available land as being an issue; and that the digester isn’t necessarily going to solve the problem for ammonia.  Is that a good summary?


MR. WASS:  That’s correct.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  So the key question of the night for you is, is there a chance that waste from these dairies could infiltrate our groundwater?


MR. WASS:  Yes, there is.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So, yes, there is.  That’s all I have.  Thank you.  Mr. Michael Rucks, Superintendent, Semi-Tropic School District.  Mr. Pennell, you’re on deck.


MICHAEL RUCKS:  Thank you, Senator.  Thank you for the opportunity to be here.  I’ll be very brief.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  And I’ve just got about six questions for you, for the record.


MR. RUCKS:  Sure, no problem.  I’m superintendent/principal of Semi-Tropic School District which … and by the way, I speak only for my school district.  And at this point, I’m probably in an unofficial capacity, so we’ll go from there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sure.

MR. RUCKS:  On the photograph, a copy of the photograph, there are photos you have there, the little red circle is around the school site there at Highway 46 and Gun Club Road there.  Currently there are two dairies that are in operation within three or four miles of the school.  In addition, I think there are three dairies that are proposed for development within, again, just a very few miles of the district.  I think a couple of them are in Wildwood, which is our east boundary of our district, is right there on our border, if you’re on our boundary, if you will.  The district itself is a rectangular shaped district.  It’s about 105 square miles.  And kindergarten through eighth grade school; approximately 260 – 265 students are enrolled.  And obviously there are some implications and issues as the district administrator and the secretary for the school board that I’m concerned about on behalf of the students and the staff.


Senator, in regard to this issue that you’re having a hearing on tonight, about four years ago we were going through this bio-sludge dumping problem.  Human waste being dumped by the truckloads, going right down in front of the school.  Tons and tons.  And thank goodness the supervisors took some action to put some restraints on that and put some controls on it.  So we had problems, particularly, four years ago, with vectors, flies, that type of thing with that bio-sludge dumping.  So, you know, we’re a pretty confined area out there.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have any idea whether the bio-sludge number was as high as 320,000 tons of manure?


MR. RUCKS:  I wouldn’t be surprised.  I could swear that 10, 15, 16 of the tractor trailer rigs went right by the school everyday.  And they would run at times which would be less under observation by school staff and so forthearly morning hours or evening.  But it wouldn’t surprise me if that number is very accurate.  So we’ve had bio-sludge issues to deal with; vectors and so forth.


Obviously, the air quality, as has already been pointed out, is not particularly good in the valley. 


At this juncture we’re talking about the impact that would have on the health and welfare of students, as well as staff.  Moreover, we have high temperatures throughout the summer, much of the fall, and, of course, much of the spring as well.  So we have a number of factors here which cause me concern. 


And the water quality—we have a water well there on site.  Right there on site.  


SENATOR FLOREZ:  That water … one more time.


MR. RUCKS:  We do have a water well there on site, although we primarily use bottled drinking water for students and staff.  Nevertheless, it might be subject to groundwater pollution and that type of thing.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have water fountains on your campus?


MR. RUCKS:  We do.  And we do have filters on those water fountains.  So it’s not obviously unhealthy by any means to drink.  It’s just that the texture and aesthetic quality and so forth of the groundwater is not really good.  But it’s certainly not unhealthy.


So what I’m here to do is to listen and to learn. 


SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’ve answered about five of my questions.  But just in terms of respiratory problems of students—higher, lower?  You’ve seen more increase, less over the years?  Getting better?


MR. RUCKS:  Of the 260 students we have enrolled, normally each fall when the parents fill out the enrollment forms on their children, it’s anywhere from 10 – 15 students that will be requiring medical care; either the little device they use to open air passages, or they’ll be under medication, that type of thing.  So it varies from year to year.  Upper respiratory problems, coughs and so forth, through all and winter, at times are of concern.

But I just wanted to listen, as I said earlier, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I got you.  Let me just ask a couple of more questions.  Of the map you mentioned, you’re Semi-Tropic is in the red circle, is that correct?

MR. RUCKS:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And of these particular proposed dairies, you mentioned Semi-Tropic being in a 105 square mile.  How many of these dairies fall into your district?

MR. RUCKS:  Right now it looks like two are in operation, and three are proposed.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So five, would, if indeed, would fall into your particular district?

MR. RUCKS:  Right.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And given that, has the school board participated in the comment period for these particular, or do you plan to participate … did you participate in two existing dairies?  How does the school board work with this process called the Planning Commission, of which the west side has no members?  And then also, your particular interaction through the newspapers, the press releases?  How do you know about all this stuff?  You’re the school district, you have, I don’t know how many students you mentioned?  Two-hundred-and-sixty-five students?  How do you participate?  How do you get your particular viewpoint heard?

MR. RUCKS:  Well this is the first official gathering I’ve gone to.  And the media, newspapers, information about it.  And obviously we are involved by virtue we’re there.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you get notices?  Anything coming your way?  You’re the superintendent, anything saying, Proposed dairy.  Comment period, please come?

MR. RUCKS:  I can’t say we have received any notices?  We have received information from the county regarding hearings and so forth.  But it’s been basically, the dairy is over there, type of thing.  So now we’re becoming intimately involved with the prospects of dairies in our area.  And that does cause us some concern.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so from the board perspective, you’re probably … well let me ask.  Does the board plan on being actively involved in this particular Planning Commission decision, or board decision?  Next Tuesday is an important meeting that says, according to the Kern County Board of Supervisors to June 22, establishing dairy standards; issue of grandfathered dairies; the issue of environmental impact reports.  I mean, does the school district participate in stuff like this?  How do you get your voice heard?

MR. RUCKS:  We sure did with the bio-sludge issue some years ago.  We were very much involved because it impacted the health and welfare of the students, and similarly, we may very well pursue that type of thing as well.  I’d have to talk to the school board and get the direction there.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you very much.  

MR. RUCKS:  You’re welcome.  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Pennell.

LARRY PENNELL:  Good evening, Senator.  If I may defer for a moment to the mayor.  He had some opening remarks on behalf of the city.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Absolutely.  As long as they’re short because I have a lot of questions and I just want to make sure I get them for the record.  I’ll mark them off as you go if you’re answering.

Mr. Mayor, thank you again, for allowing us to utilize this.

DANNY ESPITIA, MAYOR, CITY OF WASCO:  Thank you, Senator, for your presence. 

Good evening, and welcome to Wasco.  I’m Danny Espitia, mayor of the city of Wasco.  

My colleagues on the city council and I have joined many of our residents who expressed sincere concerns on the about proposed concentration of dairies to the northwest of our community.  While none on the city council are skilled scientists possessing vast scientific data on the impact of over 100,000 dairy cows, we are concerned on the dairy locations, degradations of the environment that occurs through odors, flies, and dust.  We are also concerned about the emissions of methane gas and ammonia created by these cows.  Use of large amounts of water and possible contamination of groundwater by the 120 pounds of manure produced by these cows are cumulative effects which must be addressed in the application process so that each of the councilmembers and citizens can reach their own conclusion on what effect these proposed dairies may have on the quality of life. 

I plan to listen with an open mind, but frankly, I must admit, that my observations to date cause much concern.

The city of Wasco has worked over ten years to unburden itself from the bond indebtedness problems associated with the Wasco Valley Rose Golf Course.  The eventual residents developments surrounding the golf course will provide a better balance upscale homes available to the residents who now find larger homes in other communities.  I am concerned that the concentration of 12 or 13 dairies upwind from the residential development could in effect, derail this entire project.  I will listen with keen interest to the explanation of mitigation measures and the enforcement of air quality standards as we evaluate the pros and cons of this issue.

Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Just a couple of questions while you’re here so I can get them on the record.

Did you get the press release on these dairies?

MAYOR ESPITIA: I didn’t.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Via the grapevine?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did you read it in the Wasco paper?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  Not through the Wasco paper.
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  How did you hear about this particular 100,000 cows?  You’re the mayor, how did you hear about it?  I expect you to be the first called.  How did you hear about it?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  Through the coffee shops.  Through the –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  See, Ted.  The grapevine works.  Okay, so you’re in the grapevine, right.

MAYOR ESPITIA:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So in given that you heard it in the coffee shop, what, in essence, given that Wasco is working towards a solution, obviously, with the county, on the buffer zone, and I know that Mr. Pennell and Mr. Guinn have been working very long and hard on, if you will, the exclusion zone and some of the other issues, what was going through your mind, given that that was going on, at the same time you kind of found out that we had an influx, if you will, of applications being passed or not passed … I’m sure, and I’m not going to put words in Ted’s mouth, but I’m sure that he was as surprised when people, in essence, come with that large of amount and in such a concentrated area, just what were you thinking and what did you plan to do?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  Well each of us carry a voice, even though it’s a small community, whether it be Wasco, Shafter, McFarland, Delano, and it’s a voice that needs to be reckoned with.  We need to be listened to.  We need to be … things of this caliber need to be addressed to us in an open manner.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have you ever been to a county planning meeting?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  No, I haven’t.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you know when they are?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  Well I just found out … why I have known to 2:00, and it’s hard for me to make them at 2:00 because of the work doesn’t permit that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have you ever met with any county commissioners?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you plan to?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  Now I do.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Have you been contacted by any of the dairies?  You’re the mayor.  It’s expected that dairies were going to come in.  That rather than going to Truxtun Avenue, they would come to the city hall where they’re locating.  Any of these proposed dairies ever meet with you?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  No, not me.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Not even in the coffee house?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  No.  I try to stay out of coffee houses.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have they even said, hello?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you’re the mayor?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  I’m the mayor.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  None of these 10 dairies?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  Not one; not 12; not 13.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why do you think that is?  They’re not locating in Bakersfield, right?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  Yes.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So why would they not come meet with the mayor?  Just your thought?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  They probably don’t know who the mayor is, just like I don’t know who they are.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Wasco planning on implementing anything in terms of beyond the buffer to deal with these dairies, as a city?  Anything that we … and that might be a question for Larry or yourself, but are there any available tools for a city in this, given that you have a sphere of influence, I understand.  You’ve got a city limit.  I got that too.  But I mean, is there anything, other things, that you’re thinking about?

MAYOR ESPITIA:  I know that our city manager and Councilmember Pearson have met with the Planning Department from Bakersfield, and they have –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I think I’ve got what I need from you on the record.  If I could jump, Larry, to another councilmember, Larry Pearson, could you come on up and I’ll just get from him, and then I’ll get to you, if that’s okay.  That’s following protocol.

LARRY PEARSON:  Senator, I’ve got a statement I’d like to read and then perhaps entertain your questions at that time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How long is it?

MR. PEARSON:  Five minutes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Too long.  Let me ask you some questions first, and if I don’t get to your statement … but you can submit it for the record.

MR. PEARSON:  That’s fine.  That’s okay.  It’s your meeting.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  We’ll submit it for the record and that will be … we’ll make sure it’s part of the record.

Let me start off where I left off with the mayor:  Proposed dairies affecting the city of Wasco, what does it mean to you?  You’re a city councilmember?  What does 100,000 mean?

MR. PEARSON:  Well it means that all of our future growth around the proposed golf course and the projects we have out there, we would anticipate a tremendous amount of housing growth around the golf course because we finally have … are in the process of solving that problem.  But at the same time, we know what dairies have done other places, and as soon as the dairy comes in, growth stops just like that.  We know that our commercial development along 46 depends on the influx of homes, people, and the creation of jobs.  Those things happen because people come, then you need to provide services for those people.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the owners of proposed dairies, the ten or so?  Do they ever contact you?

MR. PEARSON:  Actually, I had one.  I had one farmer, Phil Portwood(?), had a concern.  He came by and talked to me.  And his concern was, that he wasn’t notified about the buffer zone.  And he had property in the buffer zone, but he wasn’t in the city, so I referred him to Supervisor Watson.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Any of those ten dairies proposed, contact you?

MR. PEARSON:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why not?

MR. PEARSON:  I have no idea.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why do you think?

MR. PEARSON:  I think they’d rather deal with Bakersfield, perhaps, than deal with us.  We were told, when we first started the buffer process, a sphere of influence process, when we first started this, we were looking at … I know I was personally it was about one or two dairies.  And we were looking at a three-mile … and I think it was at Supervisor Watson’s call, that we need to put come actual criteria to the rhyme and reason for where lines would be, which doesn’t make sense.  It’s not an arbitrary decision, but I know when the process started, I was thinking it was one or two dairies.  I certainly wasn’t thinking it was 13.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I want to talk about the buffer zone in a minute.  But the council is officially on record as wanting a buffer zone, is that correct?

MR. PEARSON:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did you hear our air district person say, It doesn’t really matter, from an air pollution perspective?  That it’s actually going to hit Bakersfield and those areas, as well.  Did you hear that?

MR. PEARSON:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So given that, did you change your mind on the buffer zone?

MR. PEARSON:  I think that the buffer zone … I always thought the buffer zone was only the first step; the first of many, many steps.  I’ve heard the air quality person, as I’ve heard the water quality person.  Now, I realize that there are numerous steps that have to take place in order for the health of our citizens in our communities to be safe.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does the city have a nuisance law?

MR. PEARSON:  Yes, we do.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you ever use it?

MR. PEARSON:  I’m sure we do.  We have a code enforcement person that we get a report occasionally.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have you ever met a dairy inspector?

MR. PEARSON:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Just checking.  The Bakersfield Californian had you quoted on June 13th as saying, “People in Bakersfield look at Wasco as being a million miles away.”  And I guess I wanted to know, what did you mean by that?  What were you trying to convey?

MR. PEARSON:  Well typically people in Wasco, I would say that a high percentage of every dollar that is made in Wasco as earnings or salary, probably a large, large, percentage is spent in Bakersfield.  People look at Bakersfield as being right there.  They go to the Wal-Mart; they go to the Costco.  But people in Bakersfield, we have one of the most car shows in the world that our car club in town puts on, fantastic, and people just don’t … Bakersfield is too far.  And so the perspective of where you’re at, it’s a perspective.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of how the community feels in Wasco, because we are in Wasco, and you are an elected member at large, correct?  Not by district here in the city.  Overall, how people feel about this 100,000, not the one dairy or the two, but if indeed we did get to a threshold of 100,000, what would be your … what’s the temperament?

MR. PEARSON:  The comments that I have heard is … there are two sets of farmers.  People in the community that live in the community, I have not heard anybody be supportive of a dairy.  The two sets of farmers, there are farmers who have property that is congruent or adjacent to the city limits, and they recognize the potential for building and homes.  And we have some examples of property that in just the last year have gone from $4,000/acre to $17,000/acre.  And those people that have properties congruent to the city limits, understand that that is a real value.  Their value is in the homes that can be built and developed.  But they also see what a dairy can do to that building, and will stop that growth in a heartbeat.  But at the same time, there’s a loyalty amongst farmers, and you cant’ blame them for that.  They depend on each other.  But there’s a group of farmers that are farther out that actually want to sell their property.  Well farming hasn’t been good.  It’s a chance for them to bail out of a bad business.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And sell it to who?

MR. PEARSON:  Dairies, I’m assuming.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Sell it to dairies?

MR. PEARSON:  That’s what I meant.  I’m sorry.  Dairies.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So they’re not selling to residential, they’re selling to dairies.

MR. PEARSON:  They’re selling to dairies, yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Any thought about public meetings on this issue from the city council perspective?  I know we’re doing one tonight, just one night out of the year.  But how are you going to get more input from the community on their feelings on this?

MR. PEARSON:  Well, having a personality such as yourself chairing a meeting I think draws people to the platform, obviously.  I think that’s important.  I think having representatives from other cities and county representatives being here, experts in water quality and air management or air quality, I think those things also … everybody that’s here tonight will have learned a lot about dairies.  That’s the most … that interest will spread.  The information will get out.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But the city itself, when I’m gone, and I’m not here, are you going to be doing … you have meetings in the evening, correct?

MR. PEARSON:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how would you get the word out for folks to know more about the impact of these particular dairies?  Other than the people here and those on the grapevine, how do we get the word out?

MR. PEARSON:  I’m going to make an assumption now that I know that our councilmembers are very interested in this particular issue.  There’s not one councilmember that’s not concerned about the health issues.  I think that our dialogue among ourselves with our city manager and staff, perhaps if the idea comes out and we will start plotting, maybe we need to do a public hearing, and maybe do it in a bigger building that can handle the number of people, and perhaps even bring more the same type of speakers.  That would be my idea.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think that you could commit to doing that?

MR. PEARSON:  I can commit to it after I go on vacation.  My wife deserves some of my time, okay?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, I think if you can confer with the mayor and the councilmembers, I think, and I would say for any community that has … you know, this is a big deal, 100,000 cows when you have how many residents here?

MR. PEARSON:  We have 22,000, but one-fifth of them are locked up.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  One hundred thousand cows, 15,000 … three community members.

MR. PEARSON:  They out number us tremendously.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Larry, did I not ask you any questions that was in your statement that you would like to add for the record?  We will add what you have to the record, but is there anything else that I didn’t ask?

MR. PEARSON:  I took my father to the hospital about a month ago.  He had some stroke symptoms.  And he’s a Kaiser insurance guy, and he likes the Fresno Hospital, so I took him to Fresno.  He had some MRIs, an MRI and MRA done.  And I found it very interesting that his doctor had written on his results of his test that the sinus disease that exists in our valley and he says, But don’t worry, it’s just something that you’ve got to live with.  Because, over half of our residents in the valley have sinus disease.  And that blew me away, to think that over … I mean, this is the doctor’s report to my 80-year-old father.  And it really was bothersome to me because I know that elderly are very, very sensitive to air quality, but it never hit home except when I read it, and it really hit home.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.

MR. PEARSON:  You got it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Pennell.

LARRY PENNELL:  Good evening, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thanks.  I eliminated, Larry, just a whole bunch of questions, so I just have a few.  Is that okay?

MR. PENNELL:  By all means.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Just in terms of the overall issue—water sources, let’s just start there.  You heard some of the presentation from the Water Board.  Wasco interact much in this process with the Water Board, or is more of a county discussion with our water quality people?

MR. PENNELL:  It’s been more related to discussions with county representatives.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the ten dairies or so that are locating here … now I know you’ve got to say yes on this one.  Have the dairies been in your office and sat down and introduced themselves?

MR. PENNELL:  Regrettably, no, they have not, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you’re the city manager?

MR. PENNELL:  I am.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. PENNELL:  I have, however, met with David Albers, two years ago, in conjunction with the Shafter/Wasco joint effort to establish boundaries.  But none of the proponents –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But on these proposals, anybody come in and say, Look, here’s kind of what we’re thinking of doing.  I want to let you know, it’s going to be just on the outside of your community.  Thought we should inform you.  Anybody do that?

MR. PENNELL:  No, Sir.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You are in the process of developing the buffer zone.  That’s correct?

MR. PENNELL:  In fact, it was adopted by the Wasco City Council last night.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It was adopted last night by the Wasco City Council.  Can you explain kind of what it looks like, and in general, the exclusion concept?  That might be helpful for the committee.

MR. PENNELL:  The exclusion zone, and I’ll speak for the Wasco portion … it’s a joint submission by the city councils of Shafter and Wasco.  The Wasco portion attempts to recognize two specific areas.  The easier one is the 4699 front door to the community that we’d like to protect from dairy development.  The more difficult and complex issue is the one that the mayor and Councilman Pearson eluded to; that’s the northwest area, outside our city limits, outside our sphere of influence, but nevertheless, in our growth pattern, and also down wind from the prevailing winds of these 10 or 12 proposed –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Down wind meaning, the wind blows northwest to southeast?

MR. PENNELL:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. PENNELL:  So any development, dairy development, in this area, will impact the Valley Rose Estates area, as indicated, is ripe for development now that we’re selling the golf course and that property.  And in fact, represents the future of Wasco in providing a better balance in a home mix better than currently exists.  It’s taken us ten years and hundreds of thousands of dollars to resolve this bonded indebtedness issue.  I’m very, very concerned that the entire project will be jeopardized by dairy development if in fact the air quality, the odors, the groundwater contamination occurs it will harm our future.  Not to mention, the current residents who expect us not to sit on our hands, but to investigate the ramifications of this potential dairy development.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Larry, that’s all I have, believe it or not.  I think I asked Danny and Larry both the normative questions.  On the buffer though, you passed it.  The process will now be what from here?  The council passed it.

MR. PENNELL:  We will be transmitting jointly, the cities of Shafter and Wasco, will be transmitting this map along with a narrative description and justification to Ted James, the previous presenter, the county planning director, who will prepare his staff analysis and report and submit it to the Board of Supervisors.  The Cities of Shafter and Wasco met with our respective county supervisors, Mr. Watson and Mr. McQuiston, and we believe we’ve gained their support based on the logic and the propriety and the growth plans of our respective communities.  And I’m optimistic that they will be able to convince their colleagues on the Board of Supervisors to embrace this map that will exclude dairy development within this buffer zone.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You’ve got two votes.  You need one more.

MR. PENNELL:  Every city manager knows how to count to three, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much, Larry.  Appreciate it.

MR. PENNELL:  Thank you very much.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. Guinn, City Manager, city of Shafter.  John, do you have a statement, because I have questions?  What do you –

JOHN GUINN:  No, I’d be happy to answer your questions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I want to be fair to Mr. Pearson.  Just in terms of the impact on the city of Shafter overall.  How do you view … what do you think about this 100,000 or so potential dairy sitings?

MR. GUINN:  Currently, the city of Shafter has seven dairies near Shafter, all of them west.  As we learned from Mr. Warner from the Air District, obviously you don’t have to be right next door to a dairy to be impacted by it.  So we have joined with the city of Wasco in this effort to get some protection around our communities and that’s important.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the water source issue that you just heard earlier—concern you?  How do view that as well?

MR. GUINN:  Water is … we work with this … the regulator of the city of Shafter’s water system is the state Health Department.  And we work very closely with them.  The regulator of our waste water system is the Water Quality Control Board.  So there’s a connection between all of those entities in water quality control around the communities.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  The ITT Center, the Target Center, some of those things?

MR. GUINN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that in the city of Shafter?

MR. GUINN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Was it when it first decided to come into being?

MR. GUINN:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It wasn’t?  It was in the county?

MR. GUINN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did they ever come see you before they decided to build there?  Did they go into your office and say, Hi.  We’re the ITT Center.  We’d like to meet you?
MR. GUINN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that normal for people who would like to do economic development projects?

MR. GUINN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Have any of the dairies here met with you?

MR. GUINN:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Has the city taken any position, if you will, on this particular 8 or 9 or 10 dairies?

MR. GUINN:  No.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Has the city taken a position on the buffer?

MR. GUINN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And Wasco has passed it.  Where is the city of Shafter on that?

MR. GUINN:  The city of Shafter pass … the city of Shafter Council passed it some time ago and we haven’t changed it since then.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you heard me mention earlier the Planning Commission, and I believe three members from the city of Bakersfield, one member from the eastern side, and no west side representation, does that pose a problem from your viewpoint?

MR. GUINN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why?  Why is that important?

MR. GUINN:  Well, obviously this is a great example, and an obvious example.  There is land use decisions being made in the valley floor near the communities of Shafter, Wasco, Arvin, Delano, and having some county representation on the Planning Commission would be critical.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think that would have changed a real life example for Shafter in Vanderham in terms of the process for the city of Shafter if there indeed had been somebody from the city of Shafter, for example, Mr. McQuiston’s district?

MR. GUINN:  Or someone near Wasco or Shafter.  Certainly I think it would have raised concerns.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of Vanderham as an example, you’re overall process, the grapevine, the press releases, the Shafter Press, how did you know?  Was it too late?  Too soon?  Too much?  Not enough?

MR. GUINN:  In the case of the Vanderham Dairy, there was a substantial amount of expense made on the Vanderham’s part to permit the dairy by the time we engaged in the debate.  We did suggest to the county as a result of that, that one of their conditions be that they require the proponent of the dairy to meet with the mayor of the nearest city as soon as they submit a conditional use permit.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And given that, does Shafter have the ability appeal location or size of a proposed dairy?

MR. GUINN:  I’m sorry, to appeal?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  Do you have any appeal process?  Don’t like it?  Other than the EIR process; CEQA.

MR. GUINN:  We do not have the ability to reject a permit, if that’s the question.  We can appeal to the county supervisors to not issue the permit.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the part of the placement process of a new dairy, what would the buffers do?  I mean, what, in essence, you’ve heard some of the things in terms of placing a dairy, what, in your mind, is a buffer going to do?  How is it going to work in the future for dairies?

MR. GUINN:  In the Shafter/Wasco case, what it will do, it will give citizens in the city of Shafter, as well as property owners near the city of Shafter, some certainty as to the land use in the area.  There won’t be this, well they may or may not.  With the conditional use process, there’s some subjectivity to the permitting process and no one is really quite sure.  It would give everyone a clear sense that at least in that area there will not be any dairies permitted.  And I think that’s huge just from an overall land use planning, per se.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  And talking about that overall land use planning for the city of Shafter and Wasco, this is, in essence, for dairies your master plan, correct?

MR. GUINN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Does the county have a master plan for dairies?  I mean, you’re creating a piece-meal.  You’re saying that this is what Shafter and Wasco would prefer.  But if Delano came in, and Tehachapi came in, and other people came in, I mean, we would be piecing together ad hoc, if you will, but it wouldn’t be any sort of master growth plan for dairies.

MR. GUINN:  I’m not aware of any master plan.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would that, in your mind, be helpful?

MR. GUINN:  Very helpful.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And why so?

MR. GUINN:  Well, I think from several perspectives.  It would begin to give the community at large a sense for how many cows total are going to end up in the area; what the density of that population is going to be; and where dairies are going to be located.  Currently it’s really … I mean, I found out about these, I think, from Mr. Pennell.  He called and said, Hey, did you hear about these dairies?  And that was the way we learned of it.  And it would just be very helpful at some point to know that this is where dairies are going to be; this is where people are going to live; and we have a master plan.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do we do that for agricultural land?

MR. GUINN:  Agricultural land is zoned with permits.  And actually in a very similar way for dairies.  I mean, land in Kern County, you can permit a dairy with a conditional use permit, but it --

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Fraught.

MR. GUINN:  Yes.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And you’d like more specifics on it.

MR. GUINN:  That would be very helpful.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the city of Shafter, implementing your own ordinance, done that for dairies within the city limits so now you’ve expanded out so you’ve got a little bit of ag –

MR. GUINN:  Dairies aren’t permitted in the city of Shafter.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So dairies are not permitted.

MR. GUINN:  They are not permitted in the city of Shafter today.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  All right.  Thank you, Mr. Guinn.  Do you have anything else you would like to add for the record?

MR. GUINN:  Actually, there is one other comment I would like to make.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Please.

MR. GUINN:  It is that I think it would be very helpful if we did do a detailed economic study of the impacts of dairies, not only on the county at large, but on the communities that they’re nearest.  I think one of the things that I learned today, and have suspected from some of the other presentations, particularly Mr. Warner’s, is that the value of the air that’s consumed and its alternative uses, and the value of its alternative uses as it relates to the use being consumed by dairies, I don’t think has been analyzed, or if it has, I would like that information.  Air is a limited resource; aside from being just something that we all need, it has uses.  And if we’re going to use it for dairies, is that giving us the greatest return and the greatest benefit for all of us?  That would be, I think, very helpful in this process.  If we’re going to use it up, then at least use it up in a way that we’re going to get the biggest value out of it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Good suggestion.  Thank you.  Mr. Watson, thank you for joining us.  The supervisor of Kern County.

RAY WATSON:  Good evening, Senator, and thank you for the opportunity to participate tonight.  I do have a few comments if you’d like to hear those first.

First, I would say that my primary role here tonight is to listen.  And I’ve heard a lot of interesting and valuable information.  Second, is to comment a little bit on the process which I’ll do here in just a moment.  And then the third is, to answer any questions that you or other people here this evening may have.

First, I’d like to acknowledge that I think all of us on the board realize that dairies are a very important issue to the nearby residents.  They need to be protected from pollution, odors, and flies to the maximum extent possible.  They’re important to the San Joaquin Valley in terms of the air quality impacts countywide and valley wide. 

And third, which is a counterbalance to those is, the issues related to property owners and their rights on both sides.  Those who want to be in the business, those want to sell to the business, and those who do not want them in the neighborhood.

Just a little bit about the process.  Ted James mentioned, and I will reaffirm the fact, that I don’t think it’s the intention of the board to consider the dairies separately.  We intend to look at the impact of all of them together.  And that doesn’t necessarily mean that all would be approved or all would be disapproved.  But the impact in total would be looked at from all standpoints.

If any of the dairies are to be supported by me, I can tell you a little bit about my philosophy.  One is that I think the industry has come far enough throughout the world that we should expect nothing less than the very best technology available.  Any dairy that comes into Kern County should be a model for the world as of the date that it goes in there.  

We should expect the elimination of most of the pollution and odors.  We should expect the highest standards of fly control, groundwater protection, and control of runoff.

I think Mr. James also mentioned the fact that we will be addressing a dairy inspection program, and that should happen sometime this early fall.  

The cities of Shafter and Wasco have approved dairy buffers, and that’s something that we’ve been encouraging them to do for about a year-and-a-half now.  And we expect those proposals to come before the Board of Supervisors shortly.

I would estimate that the amount of land that will be protected by those buffers between the two cities is well over 100 square miles.

In the end, I think the board has a responsibility to balance the interests of development that the cities need to manage and prepare for, and address the density issues, in-fill issues, versus leapfrog, so that we can protect to the extent possible, the land that we have available for ag, because once it disappears, it is gone forever.  So I think those are two interests that we need to consider as we make our decisions in this area.

But my ultimate goal in this is whatever we do, I’d like to see an improvement in the quality of life that would consider environmental issues; it would consider health issues, and it would also consider economic issues.  And that’s the extent of my comments and I’ll be happy to answer any questions that I can.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thanks.  I’m trying to mark off some questions that you’ve answered as you went on.  

Just in general, were you surprised at the number of dairies wanting to expand on this side of town?

MR. WATSON:  Yes, I was.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And why is that?

MR. WATSON:  Well, I think for the last year or two we’ve communicated with leaders in the dairy industry our desire to improve the standards for any applicants in the county, and I think they are very well aware of those.  And frankly, I thought that perhaps they might be interested in going somewhere where the standards were not as rigorous.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so then Kern County offers what to you?  Why do you think?  The same question I asked Mr. James.

MR. WATSON:  What does it offer to the dairy industry?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Why chose here?  If they had all these other places?

MR. WATSON:  Well I think a lot of it has to do, again, with the proximity to the Southern California transportation routes; things of that nature.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And in terms of the buffer, just a couple of topics.  Mr. Guinn, Mr. Pennell, mentioned the council supporting the buffers.  How do you see, and what type of reception do you believe that, given that this is a locally generated and supported plan by both councils, what kind of reception do you think that’s going to get at the board?

MR. WATSON:  I think it will get a positive reception.  I think it’s been well thought out.  And I can’t speak for the other members of the board, they may want to try to tweak something here or there, but other than that, I think they believe in the concept.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And the board may want to tweak something, you say, here and there, and the reason for that would be why?

MR. WATSON:  Again, to make sure that we do not take out of use land unless it’s absolutely necessary.  And I think those are things that have to be discussed on a border by border basis to make the board feel comfortable that we’re not taking something out of production that doesn’t have to be taken out.

SENATOR FLOREZ: Okay.  So given the board wants to protect land and our water folks just said we need to find 20,000 acres of land, how does that mesh?

MR. WATSON:  It’s again, the balance between the development issues and ag issues, which is something that we have to face in every development, whether it’s dairies or anything else.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So I guess the decision point is the county to require if these proposals are indeed submitted and go through a process, the land issue be paramount to this?  Meaning, 25,000 acres, if that, indeed, is what we need to do to deal with the 320,000 tons of manure and 39,000 tons of urine?

MR. WATSON:  I can’t speak for the other board members, but I would expect that all this would require that the dairies be able to recycle and use all of the products of the dairy, and that in the process we do not end up with an incursion into the groundwater of nitrates and other pollutants.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  In terms of the buffers, any other controls that the county is looking at?  I know we’ve mentioned the digesters.  SB 700 requires a higher threshold now with best available technology.  The county planning on incorporating what the air board decides to come up with, be it current and also in June or something like that of 2006, is the county going to, in essence, incorporate some of that in terms of what you’re doing?

MR. WATSON:  Well I think we’ll be looking at each proposal.  And I think we’ve made an attempt already to communicate with some of the dairy operator proposals and with leaders in the industry of what kind of standards we’ll be looking at.  And from what I’ve heard, all of the dairies that I’ve heard about so far are planning to use anaerobic digesters.  But I know that there are other technologies out there that may produce the same or even better results.  And I would hope that as we go along, as new technologies become available, that the dairy industry just in terms of being good stewards, would want to adopt the best that’s available at the time that they come online.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think there’s a threshold of how many cows we should have in Kern County?

MR. WATSON:  Gee, I haven’t seen a calculation on that, but I do believe that we need to look at the overall impact on the environment and all of the aspects.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you said .. have we done that?  I mean, we have 100,000 here, and we had Borba, and then we have Vanderham, and I’m just wondering, at what point do we say we’re finally going to do it and say that’s our threshold?

MR. WATSON:  Well, that’s a calculation that hasn’t been made yet.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  But that’s what I mean, do we add another 100,000 in two years and say, well, we sort of have to make that calculation and then two years later say, we have another 100,000 and we say, we still have to add … I mean, at what point do we do the calculation?

MR. WATSON:  Well, I think it’s probably going to happen now.  As I said, I was surprised that we got any applications.  And when we got 8 or 10 all at one time, it was quite a surprise.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I think that scares me when you say, you were surprised, because I think that we would probably know from a county either yes or no to some of these areas in what our threshold is.  I mean, it would just seem to me –

MR. WATSON:  That isn’t what I was … I was surprised about how many dairies decided they wanted to come here.  That’s why we hadn’t addressed it, because we didn’t think any were coming.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  You appoint a member of the Planning Commission?

MR. WATSON:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are they from the west side or from Bakersfield?

MR. WATSON:  The one that I appointed is from the northeast semi rural section of Bakersfield.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Northeast semi rural area of Bakersfield.

MR. WATSON:  In other words, it’s not right in the metro area.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And that would be what area?

MR. WATSON:  Out near the Rio Bravo area.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Rio Bravo.  Okay.

MR. WATSON:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The county had … and I should ask Mr. James this, but in your comments to the board, Supervisors McQuiston and Watson addressed issues relating to dairies in Kern County.  One of the things that you talked about is reactivating the Dairy Technical Advisory Council in an advisory capacity.  Why is that?

MR. JAMES:  Well I think there are a lot of complex issues related to the dairy industry, and I think that the industry itself can make a major contribution to the process, but it certainly doesn’t consist only of dairy people.  It consists of people from all segments.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So the Dairy Technical Advisory Council is now reactivated, or has to be reactivated?

MR. WATSON:  No, it hasn’t been.  But that’s something that will be up for consideration.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you said it isn’t just dairy people?  When you mean that, when you say that, what other type of people would be --

MR. WATSON:  Maybe Mr. James could help me.  I was not here when that was an active body, but I don’t think it’s just dairy people.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Mr. James, could you give us a picture of what it used to look like; why it was deactivated; why it is now reactivated; and maybe we can start there?

MR. JAMES:  Ted James, County Planning Director.  The Dairy Technical Committee consisted of special interest groups, environmental groups were involved, industry people, and agency people were involved in this process.  And their charge, was to look at the issue of whether or not we should continue with by-right dairies at the time, or require a conditional use permit.  And as you’re aware, the board ultimately required a conditional use permit process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And now it’s activated again for Mr. Watson or others, why?

MR. JAMES:  No, that was one of the referrals and the department will be providing comments back to the board on that next week. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what did the rep … you said special interest groups and environmental groups, what environmental group is on that?

MR. JAMES:  At the time there were some neighborhood groups in southwest Bakersfield as a result of the Borba project.  That was an example of one that was involved.  

At the meetings we had the Sierra Club involved, and other people have followed that process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So they were actually on the council?

MR. JAMES:  There were two special interest environmental or neighborhood oriented individuals that were representatives on that committee at the time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you’re reformulating that?

MR. JAMES:  That is something that is going to be discussed by the Board of Supervisors, and the board is going to have to make a decision on that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Given that we’re working on the Planning Commission, anybody from maybe the west side of the county going to participate in that other than special interest groups, like maybe a special interest citizen who just happens to live near one?

MR. JAMES:  I would expect and encourage everybody from communities in Kern County who are interested in this issue to participate in the process of this Environmental Impact Report and the permit process.  That’s what we’re encouraging.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I’m talking about the council; whether there’d be a spot for somebody from the west side on the council.  You know, an average citizen, not a bunch of special interest groups working for themselves.  A real person; real people; people like sitting behind you; people who like have a viewpoint other than like everybody’s own special interests.  Just common citizens.  Anybody going to be on your board like that?

MR. JAMES:  If the board decides they want to reestablish the Dairy Technical Committee, we will provide recommendations to them for representation.  And certainly we’re going to look at people that are especially concerned in this area as possible recommendations for the board to consider.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay, that didn’t even answer my question.  Mr. Watson, you’re the supervisor, do you plan to include average everyday constituents?  Your bosses, my bosses, people who vote for us, do they get to be part of this?  What do you think?  Do you think it’s a good thing?  A bad thing?

MR. WATSON:  It’s a good thing.  I would like it to be an inclusive process.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Thank you.  It seems as though the supervisors … the last question I have, Mr. Watson.  It seems as though you’re taking, from my vantage point, having been elected in 1998, and it seems the board has taken a much sharper look at dairies.  Am I incorrect to say that as compared to maybe when you were elected?  I mean, has the board changed?  Are they looking at these more critically?  My picture of it in the paper at least is, that they are.

MR. WATSON:  Yes.  The composition of the board changes after every election and I think we also learned from past experience, and we’ve learned a lot in the last several years.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So would the characterization then be that you are taking a shaper look at dairies.  If you will, you’re requiring more.  You mentioned available technologies.  You’ve mentioned a whole host of other issues.  The Technical Advisory Group, in essence … I mean, it seems as though the things that you’ve asked for, and Mr. McQuiston isn’t here, but you say you want to know about the feasibility of establishing a requirement for a single environmental impact report for multiple dairy applications; you want to establish dairy standards and technology standards; you want to look at the issue of grandfathered dairies; you want to basically, as I mentioned, reactivate the Dairy Technical Advisory; and I guess, the sixth supervisor, Mr. Wiggins, wanted to know about disposable dead cows; all of those seem to be, if I could characterize it, a step in the right direction, a much sharper view, and harder look, if you will, of dairies.  And that’s not to say, as Mr. James said, you went from by-right to something else, but is this a movement based on the amount of dairies that are coming in or just a … how would you characterize this move?

MR. WATSON:  Well I can characterize it from my own standpoint, and it applies to dairies or any other activity that comes in.  I think we have a responsibility to expect the very best of any development that occurs, whether it’s dairies or anything.  Because we have a real problem to solve, particularly with respect to air.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And if the city of Wasco … the last question I guess.  The city of Wasco, the city of Shafter, voted in mass, let’s say, in a referendum to oppose the dairies, the 100,000 cows, how do you view that as a supervisor?  Is that influence you?  Does it make you think differently on terms of having to take a vote on the Board of Supervisors?  I’m going through this with the local government piece right now as you all know.  You’re all calling me.  So I’m just kind of wondering, how do you view that?

MR. WATSON:  It’s something that I pay a lot of attention to.  I think all of us want to do what we feel is right by all of the communities.  But you know, we also have to look at the rest of the county and the rest of the people in the county.  And you know, there is a certain amount of NIMBY in any neighborhood for any type of development.  And I think we just have to make sure that we are responsible in the way we address them.  That we try to meet the desires of the communities to the best extent that we can.  But I don’t think it necessarily needs to be black and white, yes or no, or 100 percent, or zero percent.  It can be somewhere in between, I hope.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you very much.  We have three more witnesses, and I think we will close the hearing.  We also have public comment, I’m sorry.  

David Albers, the Dairymen.  And after that, we have Paul Martin, the Director of Environmental Services, Western United Dairymen.

And I have questions.  I don’t know if you have a statement.

DAVID ALBERS:  I don’t have a statement, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Great.  How many dairies does the Milk Producers Council represent?

MR. ALBERS:  Over 200, 250 or so.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how many of your dairies are located in Southern California?

MR. ALBERS:  Probably the majority of them.  Probably about 175.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And how many in the valley then?  

MR. ALBERS:  Maybe 50 or 75.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Fifty.  And from your experience, how many dairies have moved from Southern California to the valley in the last five years?

MR. ALBERS:  Well, I haven’t done any kind of count on that.  There have been very few relocations in the last few years, particularly to Tulare County and Kings County as those counties went through extensive planning processes.  In Kern, I think we’ve seen the development of approximately 10 – 15, probably 10 dairies in the last five years.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Ten dairies?  And would you say that’s an accelerated amount of growth as compared to other areas?

MR. ALBERS:  Over that same timeframe?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.

MR. ALBERS:  I would say that were more relocations to Kern over the last five years than to Tulare and Kings.  Again, just because of the planning processes that were in place in those counties.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Nobody is moving from these areas to Chino though, right?

MR. ALBERS:  Certainly not.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And speaking of that –

MR. ALBERS:  Actually, correction.  One family did.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Did they?

MR. ALBERS:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Who are they?

MR. ALBERS:  The Teveldes
SENATOR FLOREZ:  Teveldes, okay.  Let me ask you a question in terms of the movement to Kern County, because obviously that’s one of the … I got a lot of email from folks just saying, Why are they moving here?  Why here?  So you’re the dairymen, tell me.  Why here?  Why are they coming here?  Why Kern County?

MR. ALBERS:  Well, that’s a great question.  And if you know anything about dairy farming, particularly in California, it’s simply a way of life.  So when somebody’s looking at moving their operation, you look at, where is the community that I want to be in?  Where can I raise my family?  Where can I get plugged in?  Where is my social infrastructure?  It just so happens that this is a great place.  Kern County has wonderful communities; Bakersfield, Wasco, Shafter.  It’s incredible, the people that you meet.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But when you’re thinking about that good life … I mean, this is a real question and you’re the person I’ve got to ask it to … and you’re saying, you’re thinking about it and you’re thinking about what a great place to be near Wasco is, why don’t you meet with the mayor?  Why don’t you meet with the councilmembers?  Why don’t you meet with the city manager?  If it’s a good way of life … the reason I asked Mr. Guinn about the questions about manufacturers moving into somewhat similar areas is, I believe they start first and foremost at the local level.  And they come in and they say, Tell me about Wasco.  Tell me what the quality of life is.  Tell me more about this great community.  And here’s who I am.  Why didn’t they do that?

MR. ALBERS:  Well I can only speak to my experiences, and with Shafter, the only dairy that’s gone in since Mr. –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No, I’m talking about these dairies here.  I’m talking about the questions I asked Mr. Mayor, Mr. Councilmember, and Mr. City Manager.

MR. ALBERS:  That’s correct.  Since Mr. Guinn has been the city manager only one dairy has been proposed in the Shafter area as far as I know, other than what we’re looking at here.  And that dairy started its process before Mr. Guinn became city manager, I believe.  Is that right, John?  Maybe around the same time.  How long have you been there?

MR. GUINN:  ___________

MR. ALBERS:  Oh, guess not.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  For the record, that was 25 years for Mr. Guinn.  It’s a question because you kind of opened it up when you said, the reason it’s a way of life and people move to areas that are, in essence, hospitable, I think is what you’re saying.  And I guess it would seem to me that you would want to know the community that you’re living in.  And Truxtun Avenue is kind of a long way from Wasco, somewhat, miles wise.  And I was wondering why you wouldn’t necessarily come to the city that you’re locating to, if in indeed that is the overall impression that it’s a way of life and you want to kind of participate in it.  Why wouldn’t you at least stop by and take the mayor for a cup of coffee or even meet the city manager or maybe even drop off a plan or two?  Why wouldn’t that occur?

MR. ALBERS:  I think it probably should occur, Senator.  And with the Wildwood Dairy, it did in fact occur.  About 18 months ago before we submitted the application to the county I left six messages with then city manager, and the current city manager as well, and also the mayor at that time, which was Larry Pearson, six messages with each of them and also followed up with letters trying to introduce to them this dairy project that would be coming into town, wanting to make the introduction, explain what the project was, before we ever filed the application.  And unfortunately, none of those overtures were responded to.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you actively sought, but nobody ever called you back?

MR. ALBERS:  We did.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  For one out of the nine dairies?

MR. ALBERS:  For over two months.  Well, I can only speak to the dairies that I’m involved in, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And how many times have you been to the city hall before tonight?

MR. ALBERS:  To this city hall?  This is my first occasion to city hall.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Now, let me ask you a question about the dairy permits that Mr. James told The Californian was, “a little unusual.”  That many, Mr. Watson said he was indeed surprised, that not necessarily the amount, but that people would want to in this particular environment come here.  So beyond the hospitable environment that they’re seeking, and that didn’t seem very hospitable that nobody ever called you back.  I would probably say that’s not a place I would want to be.  But why do you think, again, the members of your organization want to be here?  And I’ll just tell you what one of them said:  Ted De Groot was quoted in The Californian as saying he left Chino to come here because of good feed land and high milk prices.  Is that one of the reasons, or two reasons?

MR. ALBERS:  That’s correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that the reason?

MR. ALBERS:  This is an agricultural area with a lot of good farm ground; a lot of alfalfa is grown here.  It’s just a natural extension to have dairy farming, since cows consume so much alfalfa.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you believe many of the dairies are leaving Chino because it’s pretty hostile there in terms of the air quality issue and some of the new changes that the Air Quality Board has made there?

MR. ALBERS:  I don’t think that’s really a driving factor, although it’s one consideration.  It’s primarily development pressure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s primarily what?  Excuse me.

MR. ALBERS:  Development pressure.  The developer’s buying up dairies to mow them down and build houses.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And who is selling the developers that land?

MR. ALBERS:  The dairy farmers or the land owners; maybe one in the same.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And so the development is actually driving dairies other places?

MR. ALBERS:  Correct.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   And in terms of the permits that in terms that are offered from the South Coast Air Quality District and having, if you will, higher standards, is that a factor?  And would that make this place a more inhospitable county if we, indeed, met those same types of regulations?  The Air Board is about to come out with some regulations that are, in essence, higher than South Coast.  I mean, how is your industry going to view that, given South Coast runs a pretty big amount, a big gamut of counties?

MR. ALBERS:  I think that will be a pretty major factor for anyone looking to relocate.  Anywhere in the valley they are obviously going to be faced with the same air quality regulations because one air district governs this entire valley.  And so this valley would just be compared to other areas, particularly other states.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You mentioned development … and I guess I would ask, what steps is the industry taking to make sure that land is available in Kern, given some of the water requirements we’ve talked about, the 25,000 acres?  The development is rapidly occurring in Kern County, what steps are the dairy industry making given that Kern County couldn’t become another Chino?  It couldn’t develop so quickly, indeed that, in fact, it becomes the very model of the environment that many left from?  What steps are you taking in terms of land development?

MR. ALBERS:  Well dairying, particularly here in the valley, is a good example of rural recycling so you have a vertically integrated operation.  You grow crops; the crops are fed to the cows; the cows make milk; and they also make manure; the manure is put right back on the fields to grow the crops.  So in this case, the dairymen typically will buy, or otherwise control, the land for all that manure because it makes perfect sense in their operation.  It just so happens that the best way to comply with the regulations is Mother Nature, herself.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So the dairy industry is going to be buying additional land beyond what they have in order to accommodate the spreading of manure and these other issues?

MR. ALBERS:  Well I think what you see with each of these projects is, there’s a lot more land than what the dairy facility itself occupies.  So there may very well be 25,000 acres.  It would be a pretty big number.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Are there 25,000 acres in that little eight-mile square radius there?  Are there 25,000 acres in that picture there?

MR. ALBERS:  In that map, that’s about 250,000 acres.

SENATOR FLOREZ:   And all the dairy folks have taken care of that issue, the 25,000 acres, correct?

MR. ALBERS:  No, I think we were talking about 104,000 cows with a wild guess of 25,000 acres of land to use those nutrients.  So that would be about 10 percent, I suppose, if that number is correct, which I think that may have been based on mature cows.  Here we’re talking about 50,000 or so mature cows and about 50,000 young stock.  So the numbers would be less.  In other words, smaller cows produce less manure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  That’s real fast talking for me.  Go through that again so I can understand that.

MR. ALBERS:  Well Mr. Wass was saying that 104,000 cows would require about 25,000 acres of land.  If he was assuming that the 104,000 cows were adult milking cows, that may be correct.  However, this 104 –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Adult milking cows, I believe, create about 30 gallons of urine, versus the younger cows that do about 10, is that correct?  Is that right?

MR. ALBERS:  I don’t know.  I’ve never measured the amount of urine.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well, you better start doing it if you’re going to start putting it on land near here.  I’m just wondering.  The reason I say that is that you’re saying the numbers may be incorrect based on the maturity of the cow.  And I’m just wondering then, given that we’re measuring output, if you will, are you factoring that in as well?

MR. ALBERS:  That’s correct.  We don’t actually look at the gallons of urine or the pounds of manure, we look at the nitrogen and the salts that are in the manure and that’s how the calculations are done.  So it’s very technical.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  Go ahead.  I’m sorry.  You were going through your numbers.

MR. ALBERS:  And so if the 104,000 cows were mature, they would obviously produce more nitrogen and more salts.  However, in this case I think what we’re looking at is about 50,000 milking cows and about 50,000 young stock.  And if that’s the case, the numbers would be less.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I don’t know.  You tell me how much?

MR. ALBERS:  I don’t know.  I haven’t done the math.  These applications aren’t even complete, so no one can give you that information tonight.  But at least according to Mr. James, maybe only one or two of them have real numbers associated with them right now.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you know what the numbers are?  You’re the one making the proposal.

MR. ALBERS:  As to the projects I’m involved with, I certainly do have that, but not with me tonight.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Could you submit that to the committee?

MR. ALBERS:  Sure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Have you submitted those to Mr. James?

MR. ALBERS:  In the case of one the projects, yes.  We’re not far enough along in the other one.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And what are your thoughts on the county’s decision point on grouping all of these projects into one EIR versus individual?

MR. ALBERS:  I think in this case, where you have specific projects where people already own land, and are already going through the process, and have already hired consultants, it does not make a lot of sense.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So you don’t agree with it?

MR. ALBERS:  I don’t agree with grouping these into one EIR.  I do, however, think it’s good planning for the county to do one EIR for the county.  To look at dairy use in general.

SENATOR FLOREZ: Okay.  So you want to do your own EIRs individually.  The county would like to see this in aggregate, and so you’re suggesting that the county do its own EIR based on your numbers, or are they going to go out and hire more consultants to do their study?

MR. ALBERS:  There’s any number of different ways to do it.  If the county were to do one EIR for the entire dairy and say these are dairy development zones and things like that, then it makes sense for the county to retain its consultant.  In this case, these nine could easily go forward individually because they’ve already retained consultants in most cases.  Or, as Mr. James proposed, possibly look at grouping two or three in an EIR.  Two or three here, or two or three there.  That may make sense to have some consolidation.  Certainly lighten the load on the Planning Department.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  So I’m clear, why would you specifically oppose a mass grouping of these?  Because you’ve hired all your own consultants already?

MR. ALBERS:  In this case, yes, they’ve already gone through an existing process and retained consultants.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Is there anything you’d like to add?

MR. ALBERS:  Yes.  The dairy industry is a great industry.  And I think that Wasco and Shafter will benefit more than they know by this expansion.  Good families are looking to expand here.  They already own land.  They’re already farming the ground.  It’s just a logical extension to develop that into California’s number one ag industry.  So I think it’s an exciting time for these communities.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you think … one of the questions I asked the councilmember from Wasco about putting together a forum, if you will, for more community members to understand the ramifications of this proposal, and I guess the question would be, and it’s maybe, I think a simple request, is it possible for you to get your clients to maybe meet the mayor and meet the city councilmember, all of them?

MR. ALBERS:  Absolutely. We’ve already tried.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Great.  Thanks.

MR. ALBERS:  Thank you.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Paul Martin, Environmental Service Director Western United Dairymen.  Paul, good to see you again.

PAUL MARTIN:  Thank you, Senator Florez.  It’s good to see you.  And I will introduce myself for the record.  I am Paul Martin, Director of Environmental Services for the Western United Dairymen.

The Western United Dairymen has 1,100 members of the 1,950 dairies that are remaining in California, with our membership spread from San Diego to Crescent City.  We have a district system.  And our district eight covers the Tulare/Kern County area.  And we have 130 members in that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Paul, one more time.  District 8 includes what counties?

MR. MARTIN:  Tulare and Kern.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Tulare and Kern.  And Kings and Fresno would be what district?

MR. MARTIN:  They’re district 9 in our structure.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  I just want to understand how you … and why is that structured in that way, just so I’m clear?

MR. MARTIN:  So we have a local delegate embodied in each of these areas have a good chain of flow, of interaction, with our members and board of directors.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Got you.

MR. MARTIN:  Those delegates vote at our annual meeting.

So before I do start, I want to thank you for your recognition in Senate Bill 700.  That solution to environmental issues need sound and proper science, and for providing the timeline in that bill to allow us to get some of the work that we have in progress done.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now you know it’s a state, not federal, requirement, right?

MR. MARTIN:  Right.  Yes.  In your bill.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. MARTIN:  I would like to discuss environmental regulations, the California Dairy Industry, and how that might have an influence on the city of Wasco.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And just for the record, when I asked you, fed and state, you understood, your answer was yes, correct?

MR. MARTIN:  Yes, Senate Bill 700 has the provision in there for the 2005/2006 timeline, was greatly appreciated by the Dairy Industry and we know you had a lot to do with that.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But I think the requirement you’re speaking about, it’s kind of a federal deal, is that correct?

MR. MARTIN:  The determination of _______ by the ARB?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Right.  I’m just saying the timeline applied to state permits, but the timeline you’re meeting is a federal requirement.  Your challenging –

MR. MARTIN:  We’re meeting both at this point in time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.

MR. MARTIN:  Both.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well both are a little different.  I just want to make sure that we’re clear.  I mean, we, within the state permitting process, required science in our state process.  I think what you’re meeting is a federal requirement.  Is that correct?

MR. MARTIN:  No.  What I was thanking you for was providing that 2005/2006 timeline to develop the science that we needed in order to have our permit implementations under Senate Bill 700.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  For state permits?

MR. MARTIN:  For state permits, yes.

Dairymen deal with, as you heard, with CEQA, with water permitting, and in compliance with CAFO rule which involves groundwater monitoring, stricter storage pond construction standards, formal waste management plans, all the things that Lonnie talked about on the water end of things.  And on the air side, we have just completed workshops, 17 of them up and down the state and trained 710 producers on particulate matter, infusing dust management measures.  And those producers are now implementing controls based on their conservation management practice programs.  We did these workshops in concert with the Air District, and they were totally funded by the Dairy Industry.  

During that time we also submitted 170 air permit applications.  Dairies will be facing … new dairies and expanding dairies will be facing new source review and BACT.  You heard about that earlier.  And then of course a lot of this discussion tonight has been on local regulations and building standards.

The realities in the dairy business at this point in time is that regulators, academics in the dairy industry will really need to work closely together if environmental issues on dairies are to be well understood.  The regulatory decisions will have to be made.  We know that.  Even if science is limited.  However, with  limited science, any changes to current practices run the risk of not truly improving air quality.  And that leads us to the science dilemma that I mentioned earlier.

Emission calculations that we’re using today were based on a methane study done in 1938.  That study was cited incorrectly in 1978.  And even though it was state of the art science at the time it was done, it is critically out of date.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And when you said it was cited incorrectly, who says incorrect.

MR. MARTIN:  I’ll do that on that next slide.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  Go ahead.

MR. MARTIN:  VOCs were never actually measured in a dairy research situation, and that’s why we are focusing our efforts on VOCs, and the research on VOCs, at this point in time.  

Here’s how the emission factor evolved.  This is from a paper prepared by Frank Mitloehner, Department of Animal Science at UC Davis.  It will be published in the journal.  If you start at the bottom and work back, the ’97 literature review was based on the ’88 literature review, which is based on the ’84 literature review, ’78, ’77. ’74. ’48. all the way back to 1938.  That was the only time any measures were made, and these were climate chamber studies.

The incorrect part was when the TABAC(?) literature review moved methane to the total organic gases.  And then it was simply a calculation from that point forward that got us to the 12.8.  We’re very concerned that’s not a good number.

The other dilemma with that number and with these studies, if we have no process specific information.  So we don’t know whether it’s coming from the cow herself, whether it’s coming from the stall barns, whether it’s coming from the corral, whether it’s coming from the lagoon.  We don’t have clear data on that.  So we really don’t know where to focus our control measures, and that’s what we’re working on.

What are we doing to respond to these issues?

We have an air emissions action plan for California dairies.  We are working on developing and are releasing soon a RFP for providers (California comprehensive nutrient management plan), we have California Dairy Quality Assurance Program, we’ve got the Western United Resource Development Digester Demonstration Project, and a new effort that I’m quite excited about, is the San Joaquin Valley Dairy Manure Collaborative.

The dairy action plan is following the recommendations made by the National Academy of Sciences to focus our industry resources on providing high quality and processed based emission factors for dairy operations that will allow us to develop sustainable incentive based programs to ensure rapid implementation of mitigation measures that are proven to be effective.

The comprehensive nutrient plan is to manage the application of fertilizer.  And that’s fertilizer of all kinds, manure, chemical, compost, and in all systems, conventional and organic.  It’s to focus on the total farm system, and it’s the most efficacious way to protect groundwater.  We are also addressing air quality implications as we prepare this guidance.

The California Dairy Quality Assurance Program is a voluntary proactive partnership between government regulators, educators, and the dairy industry.  We started with water quality compliance education.  We moved to air.  This is the group that sponsored the workshops that we just did.  And we’re engaging in the groundwater technology as well.  This is basically continuing education for dairy producers.

Western United Resource Development has gotten a grant from the California Energy Commission of $10 million dollars to provide cost share.  We have 14 pilot projects located strategically throughout the state intended to demonstrate and study methane digester technology and evaluate the environmental performance of methane digesters at the farm level.  We are not doing a reasonable digester as the Chino basin is doing.  It’s a different program.

We are also having quite a struggle to remove the institutional roadblocks; net metering, interconnection, permitting processes that are really slowing this technology down.

The San Joaquin Valley Dairy Manure Collaborative is sponsored by four federal agencies:  The USDA World Development Agency; the U.S. Department of Energy; the Natural Resources Conservation Service; and under the leadership at USEPA at Region 9.  The goal is to initiate a coordinated strategy among the federal agencies to address manure issues in the San Joaquin Valley.  And the focus is on implementation not research.  We want to do a project to determine its feasibility, and it very likely will be managed by the Great Valley Center.  We’re really pleased to have those folks get engaged in this situation.

Modern dairy farms have substantially developed their facilities to improve environmental protection.  We’ve got infrastructure engineering that is considerably elevated over it was in years past.  Ponds, pipelines, more efficient separators, more efficient treatment systems, and facility sizing to meet the needs.  There has also been a lot of change in management.  We’re doing comprehensive nutrient management plans.  We’re doing conservation management practices.  We’re doing formal waste management plans.  And a lot of redundancy is built in.  It’s not just one person on the ranch that knows how to do these things, but there’s backup.  So I use the terminology, environmentally immature.

The dairy industry is becoming environmentally immature.  Dairy farms can be conscientious about their environmental responsibilities.  They can be diligent in their environmental performance.  They’re a stable source of jobs.  They can enhance the tax base; provide additional revenues for schools; fire protection; health services; and be a valuable addition to a local economy.

So with that, Senator Florez, if you have any questions.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes, I do.  Thank you.  You can submit that for the record.  That would be great.

How many dairies from your association are located in Kern County?

MR. MARTIN:  I don’t have that broken out.  Kern County, I believe, is 19.  But I was trying to look that up while I was driving down Highway 99 and decided it was not wise.  But if I remember what our field rep told us, he had 19 dairies down here.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  And again, the question I asked earlier, why do you think so many dairies applied for permits for operation in this area in such a short time?

MR. MARTIN:  I think that there was a period of time there where demand kind of built up and then spilled over the edge.  You know, there was a period of time where there was not much happening and the pressures began to build down south.  And so, finally with the available land, the available feed, the available water, that Kern County hasit’s an attractive place.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Milk prices?

MR. MARTIN:  Milk prices were horrible a year ago.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  How about now?  The last two years?

MR. MARTIN:  Now they’re quite nice.  So the future looks a little brighter too.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is that fueling acquisition?  Is that fueling –

MR. MARTIN:  That sure helps, you bet. 

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And in terms of the relocation issues in terms of air quality and water quality, you’ve heard tonight, and you talked about the kind of voluntary things that the industry is doing to mitigate harmful emissions, is there more to come, or is this something that we have to ask you to do?  Regulate?

MR. MARTIN:  Well, that’s what the CEQA process really is all about.  And when counties set standards, as many counties up and down the valley have done, and the debate is engaged as to what is proper and what’s not, just the level of awareness gets higher and higher.  I used that term, environmental maturity, and I did not define it.  But that’s what I’m seeing happen in the dairy industry.  Is that awareness of environmental issues is becoming higher and higher, and producers are willing to do environmental controls that they feel will help with the problems that exist in the valley.  They just need to know they are fair, and they need to know that what they are going to do is going to get them there.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Is going to?

MR. MARTIN:  Is going to get them to the net goal at the end of the day.  They don’t want to waste resources.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now, Mike Marsh told the Bakersfield Californian on June 13th that … I’ll quote him:  “Dairies want to do their part cleaning up the air.  At the same time, we don’t want to be forced to implement technology that does nothing while the air stays bad.”  And I guess the question is, that’s kind of a restatement of what you just said?

MR. MARTIN:  Yes, it is.  If you spend your resources going down the path in this direction and then find out that that really didn’t do the job, those resources are gone and you can’t get them back to turn and move in a different direction.  And so we’re very concerned about not allowing that to happen.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You heard the testimony that Dave Warner talked about, anaerobic digesters taking about 50 percent of the methane out.  What do you think of that?

MR. MARTIN:  It’s kind of an iffy number.  I don’t think that we can technically say that at this point in time.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Do you have an idea what level of emission reduction would meet what you would call the standard of valid science?  I mean, what level would it be for you folks?

MR. MARTIN:  It’s purely anecdotal at this point in time, and so I want you to know that it’s … there’s nothing published.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So then how do you say the industry is mature then if we just kind of don’t know yet?

MR. MARTIN:  Because they’re prepared to implement what they need to when they know it’s the right thing to do.  Do you understand what I mean by that?

SENATOR FLOREZ:  No.

MR. MARTIN:  Show me is basically … we’ve got technology providers all over the place that are coming in saying, I’ll build methane digesters for you.  You ask them how many have they built?  And, well, this is my first.  Okay, show me what you’ve done.  And we have to say the same thing about control in mitigation measures—show me that it will accomplish what we hope it’s going to accomplish.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  I understand.  But given the you say the industry is environmentally mature, there’s not a thought process from the industry that we don’t need to do anything up and until the time that the science provides some sort of reduction technology, whether it be digesters, or be –

MR. MARTIN:  People are trying things everyday.  If you want to … the greatest innovator in the world is a farmer, and a dairyman is no different.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Would you say that your members have been resistant to valleys, cities, creating buffer zones?

MR. MARTIN:  Generally somewhat suspect.  I would suggest that if that was applied in both directions, it would receive a lot warmer welcome.  And I know we discussed that earlier.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  More direction meaning schools can’t encroach upon dairies and dairies can’t encroach upon –

MR. MARTIN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Well we tried that and a lot of dairy folks said, don’t do that because I want to sell my land.  And so how do you mesh that?

MR. MARTIN:  Yes, that’s the traditional problem.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Yes.  No, I’m just wondering in general.  Because, you know, tonight I think we’re very clear that the zones from an immediate air pollution perspective, 5 miles, 3 miles, 6 miles, don’t necessarily provide, if you will, immediate protection from air pollution given plumes may travel in larger and further directions.

MR. MARTIN:  That was a determination that the National Academy of Sciences made in their report.  They broke up emissions … and I wouldn’t be able to quote it precisely … but they broke them up into local importance, regional importance, and worldwide importance.  Methane is a worldwide importance, except that we hadn’t signed ______ treaty, so it’s not a national policy.  Odor is of local importance.  Ozone precursors are of regional importance.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So just in summary, your point is, there needs to be some work done on the science?

MR. MARTIN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  But dairies do emit significant air pollution?

MR. MARTIN:  Dairies are committed to performing –

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You can say, yes.  It’s okay.

MR. MARTIN:  I don’t want to say, yes.  

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So give me your rendition of yes again for the record.  Go ahead.  I know, Paul.  You and I have gone around and around on this.  And the reason I say that, obviously there is a state law now that requires you to control it, whatever it may mean to you.  Is that correct?

MR. MARTIN:  Yes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  I just wanted to get you on the record on that.  I thought I’d catch you a little bit asleep, but you were well aware.

MR. MARTIN:  We’ll be part of the solution, not a part of the problem.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Paul.  I appreciate it very much.  Let’s have Brent Newell, Center on Race, Poverty, and the Environment.  Brent, good to see you again.  Thank you for coming to Wasco.

BRENT NEWELL:  Thank you for inviting me, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The questions I have, and some of the things you may have heard, the previous panel, we heard the Air District say that the buffer zones won’t do much to reduce the harmful effects of air pollution on communities, and just your thoughts on that.  Just leave off where I left off with Paul.  What was your thought on that?

MR. NEWELL:  I think they’re critical for some pollutants and not so critical for others.  I think what Mr. Warner was saying, that they’re not important for those pollutants of regional concern, like ozone precursors or ammonia acting as a particulate matter precursor.  I think they’re of critical importance to the toxic emissions that come from decomposing livestock waste.  That is, ammonia gas and hydrogen sulfide.  The closer a receptor is to the facility, the higher the concentration of say, hydrogen sulfide would be.  California has a state ambient air quality standard for hydrogen sulfide at 30 parts per billion.  So when, even at very low concentrations over long periods of time, like 5 parts per billion, will result in toxic effects to the brain.  So I think a buffer zone would be very helpful to nearby residents when they’re dealing with those gases; when they’re dealing with particulate matter.  This chart here really demonstrates why a buffer zone would be very important for directly emitted particulate matter like dust.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now obviously you’ve been working on this issue across the valley, can you give us, here in Wasco and Shafter residents here, a larger picture from your vantage point of growth of dairies in the valley, what’s happening from your vantage point?

MR. NEWELL:  I think that there is a large scale migration from Southern California combined with a valley wide expansion of the dairy industry.  And what’s happening here in Wasco is just a snapshot of what’s happening in other parts of the valley.  If you look at what Tulare County has proposed in terms of new facilities, and what Kings County ahs proposed, the southern part of the San Joaquin Valley has many dairy projects over the horizon.  Tulare County has about 80 new and expanding dairies in their permit process.  It’s very difficult to estimate what’s happening in Kings County, but those dairies are mostly going in the southern parts of the county.  So if you look at Wasco here at the northern part of Kern County, you’ve got to take into consideration what’s happening up wind of this area.  All the pollution transport moves from north to south.  So those dairies that are going in Tulare and Kings County are influencing the regional air quality problems in Bakersfield, Arvin, Wasco, and Shafter.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  In terms of the discussion of the digester technology, is that an adequate solution from your vantage point?

MR. NEWELL:  I think it’s one of several solutions.  I don’t think a digester is a silver bullet.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  It’s not the solution?

MR. NEWELL:  It’s not the solution.  I think it goes a long way.  You have to look at other technologies, like nitrification, denitrification systems.  You have to look at capture and treatment technology for the solid manure composting.  Again, an anaerobic digester treats the decomposing liquid waste.  So there are a lot of things that need to be done in order to address the problem.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  And you saw the Air Board’s kind of itemization, if you will, of things.  It wasn’t just digesters, it was a lot more than that.  Input with the Air Board from your perspective.  Are you having success?  Non success, in terms of the regs?

MR. NEWELL:  Well we’ve submitted comments on their draft policy, and I found their draft policy to be aggressive; to be a very important step in the right direction.  They’re proposing capture and treatment technology for solid waste composting, for milk barn emissions.  It’s very aggressive.  And I hope that it continues to be so once it’s actually promulgated.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You mean, if it’s voted on by the board?

MR. NEWELL:  Actually, it doesn’t go to the governing board.  It’s a policy that will be created by staff and implemented by staff.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Now, just a couple of more comments.  In terms of the … there was an article in the Bakersfield Californian that said basically, that the county didn’t know if it was a coincidence that seven dairies have been proposed in this northwest corner of Wasco.  And I guess a question that I’ve asked everyone, why are dairies coming to Kern County?  And particularly in this case, your thought on that.  Why are they coming?

MR. NEWELL:  I think the major factor is the migration from Chino.  It’s close proximity to their existing milk processors in the Los Angeles area.  That’s about the best guess I can make.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Anything to do with the South Coast Air District ratcheting down a little more on the regs for dairies?

MR. NEWELL:  Well, the race to the bottom, that’s what I like to call the migration from Chino to the valley began in the ‘90s when the Santa Ana Regional Board began cracking down because of groundwater contamination.  I think the South Coast’s new rules will accelerate that process, that phenomenon.  But I think what we’ve seen in the last year or so is that valley regulators are catching up, and they’re getting the tools they need to deal with it.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  You said in our local newspaper that you would, “monitor the situation in terms of becoming active with the dairies here,” where are you today on this issue?

MR. NEWELL:  Well, we are monitoring it.  I think whether or not the center will become involved in permitting issues around Wasco will hinge on whether Wasco residents want the center to become involved.  We’re helping a group of Shafter residents resist the Vanderham project.  And if Wasco residents want that kind of help, then that’s what we’re designed to do.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  The last question I have:  There have been some discussion about providing … and I hate to use the word, Tanner process, but some sort of, if you will, process that would entail appointing a local committee made up of business, environmental community groups, local residents, to take a look at closer dairy sitings, much like we would some of the more hazardous waste or types of facilities.  Your thoughts on that?  Too slow?  Would work?  Wouldn’t work?

MR. NEWELL:  I think it’s a really interesting concept because county supervisors have been extremely reluctant to impose stringent mitigation measures.  They’ve been too easily swayed by claims of unfeasibility.  We’ve always, for example, advocated for anaerobic digesters, but the county board has never required one.

One thing that I would say about a Tanner Act kind of process is, that it could really bog citizens down in an expensive, time consuming, adversarial process.  We’ve been doing a Tanner Act case, my colleague, Caroline Farrel, has been doing one for years around the Buttonwillow Dump, and it is just a never ending quagmire.  So one thing that I think should be considered in terms of this problem, especially when you look at the air quality problem, is something that other states have done.  They’ve imposed a … North Carolina and Georgia have imposed moratoria on new large scale animal confinement facilities until science and treatment technology has caught up to the industry’s growth.

I think it would be a very good policy move to hold the level of the valley wide herd at existing levels.  That is, creating a moratoria on new and expanding facilities for the reasons that Mr. Warner pointed out in his presentation.  That just the amount of new pollution coming in is going to have a very serious consequence on us attaining the air quality.  And if we don’t, we have a real problem.

We also have to balance that with the industry’s needs.  There already is a very vibrant dairy industry in this valley.  It makes California the number one milk producing state in the country.  I don’t think, my own personal view, that it would harm those existing dairies if there was a moratoria put in place.  I think it would benefit everybody.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  So that would be a new spin on waiting for the science?

MR. NEWELL:  That would be a new spin on waiting for the science.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Paul, do you want to wait for the science doing that?  No.  Thank you, Brent.  Appreciate it.

MR. NEWELL:  Thank you very much, Senator.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Okay.  It’s time for public comments.  We have five public comments.  Members, I would like to ask you to contain your comments, if you could, to no more than 3 to 4 minutes.  If you have more, you can actually submit it to us for the record.  And let’s start with Tom Frantz; and then we have Theresa DeAnda.  Let’s just start with those two.

TOM FRANTZ:  My name is Tom Frantz.  I live in Shafter currently.  I’ve been in this area about 54 years.  I grew up in this area and we didn’t have dairies 54 years ago around here.  A couple of feedlots maybe.

It’s been a big burden on our environment, I can tell you.  There’s been a couple of flies in this room tonight, and they’ve probably touched on every person here.  If someone has TB in this room, you may have been exposed tonight by that single fly.

Now, you know, there’s so much to say here.  That Paul Martin sounds like the tobacco industry.  He needs absolute proof that they’re causing pollution before they’ll do something about it.  Yet on the other side of his mouth, he says they want to be part of the solution.  You failed to mention, they just sued the Air Board so they wouldn’t have to get air permits.  And I’m surprised that didn’t come out.  I don’t know what their idea was.  I was in court trying to defend the Air Board about two weeks ago on that issue against the Dairy Industry.

You know, Rick Vanderham did go to Maple School to see if they would accept his dairy two miles away.  They responded indirectly that the earliest possible date by passing a resolution that required several miles of buffer zone beyond where Vanderham wanted his dairy.  So he ignored them.  Went through the whole permit process.  Then our supervisors, you know, they said, Oh, he’s gone through the whole permit process.  He spent lots of  money.  We can’t deny it now.  Shafter asked that it not be built, basically, but they were ignored as well.  So you know, the supervisors have approved that.  We asked for a fly study so there’s a bit of delay, but I’m sure they’ll approve it again.

I haven’t found the dairy people to be good neighbors.  Like Vanderham, he wouldn’t have gone ahead knowing that there was opposition to him in that community if he was a good neighbor.  He could have found somewhere else.  He seems to have plenty of money.  He’s waited four or five years now with waiting to build the dairy, and he hasn’t bought the land yet either.  But you know, he can go anywhere.  But he’s not going to be a good neighbor.  He knows he’s not wanted.

The Dairy Industry sued the Air Board.  They’re not good neighbors.  They don’t want to be part of the solution to poor air quality.  They just want to make money like anyone else.

Personally, Mr. Vanderham came to my house and harassed me.  I had to get a restraining order.  He’s not a good neighbor.  Just because I was active in opposing his permit.

And what I’d like to ask James, here, the county, they made Vanderham get a conditional use permit, but in the months previous to that, how many dozens of by-right permits were suddenly given out to all these guys who are even just now building on those permits?  They got the permits because there was collusion between the county and the Dairy Industry before the conditional use permit went in.  Check the numbers, how many by-right permits were given in the six months before the conditional use permit process started.  Because some of those are being built … three dairies were built close to Maple school within three miles after the Vanderham permit had started.  Maple School knew nothing about that.  They all had by-right permits suddenly.  It’s a tremendous collusion in the past.  I hope that changes.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Getting near five minutes.

MR. FRANTZ:  That’s about it.  Well, 25,000 acres for a 100,000 cows traditionally has never been enough.  I’ve lived on an Amish farm in Pennsylvania.  They need an acre-and-a-half to two acres for every cow.  They need probably 200,000 acres for these 100,000 cows to have a sustainable system that doesn’t pollute.

SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Theresa DeAnda.  Next would be Wayne Catcherside.  And then after that, Linda McKay, Renee Nelson, and that’s it.


THERESA DEANDA:  Number one, I just want to touch on health and the effects of 104,000 cows that it will have on the San Joaquin Valley, not only Wasco, but on the whole San Joaquin Valley.  Because, anything that’s put in around Wasco … and I do like the city of Wasco, although I’m not from here.  I’m from Tulare County, where we have more cows than 104,000.  The health effects in general of all of the air pollution is just too, too much to put on the environment. 


Number two:  My kids, I have four grandkids, and one more grandkid on the way, and I have seven kids of my own, and all of that air pollution is bad for my kids.  I think if these Wasco board members or the Shafter board members want a presentation on air quality, Carolina Simonevitch could do a very good presentation.


A possible solution would be anything that’s going to create over a quarter ton of pollutants, as they said, the 104,000 cows would create one ton of pollutants.  Anything that’s going to create over a half of ton of pollutants should be approved by the whole San Joaquin Valley Board of Supervisors as a whole.  Maybe there should be some kind of joint creation of a joint agency to, maybe a Department of Dairy Regulation, I don’t know.  But something where all of them could look at the dairies and the pollution and the whole cumulative affect of all those.


In retrospect, I am so glad that the Boswell Dairies never did go in.  That was 54,000 cows, and now we’re looking at 104,000 cows.  That’s just too many cows.


In conclusion, to the community of Wasco, I just hope you stand up to this brazen act of sneaky dairies.  I’m no expert, I just want to put that out there.  I’m no expert on dairies, but I do know about air pollution.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Theresa.  Wayne Catcherside?  Not here.  Next.  Linda McKay.  Linda, thank you for joining us.


LINDA MCKAY:  My name is Linda McKay and I live in LeBec in Kern County.  And I’m one of the founding members of the Association of Irritated Residents.  I’ve, as I said at another meeting, not only are our respiratory systems irritated, but we’re irritated because a lot of our local legislators seem to be especially sympathetic to the industries and less sympathetic with the people that have to put up with the pollution that’s generated.


I lived in Tulare County, which has the largest number of dairies in the state.  For 16 years I lived in Tulare County.  And it was striking to me that even though it had the most number of dairies, we had had one of the highest amount of poverty in this state.  So, it seems like there’s not a good return on these dairies.

And since the dairies are getting so large, it seems reasonable to me that we have some kind of moratorium because even the Dairy Industry is saying that the science isn’t there.  We don’t know what’s really going to come out of these dairies.  But they’re huge.  I mean, the average dairy ten years ago was 600 cows, and now we’re talking, 5-, 10,000 cows in one dairy.  And we know those impacts are going to be large.  But we need to know what those impacts are going to be before we bring in 100,000 more cows in this immediate area.


The Air District guy had talked about these plumes carrying off into other areas.  Well I live in LeBec now, at the end of the valley.  And I’ve been told that the concentration of the pollution is worse at the end of the valley.  And I’ve also been told at the elevation where we’re at, approximately 3,000 feet, a little bit above, is even worse.


We have a school right on the Grapevine, and on bad air days down in the valley, you can see the bad air coming up the Grapevine.  It looks like it’s smoke.  And there is a school right there, a middle school4th grade through 8th grade.  My daughter will be attending that school in a couple of years, and I’m very concerned about the air quality there.  I’d really like to see an air monitor.  We need to have a baseline.  We need to know how our children are being affected by all this.

And I’m concerned that we’re having larger dairies coming in without knowing what the impacts are going to be.  


And that’s basically it.  That’s all I have to say.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Ken Paul.


KEN PAUL:  Thank you, Senator Florez.  My name is Ken Paul.  I’m a resident of Wasco.  I’m currently serving as the chairman of the Wasco Elementary School District Board of Trustees.  I also serve as vice chairman of the Shafter/Wasco Irrigation District.  I’m a member of the Central Valley Project Water Board Association, Central Valley Project Water Association Board of Directors, representing the _______ area, seven districts.  I’m also serving on the Kern County Water Resource Committee.  And I recently served on the Bio-sawdust Taskforce, which we did some research into groundwater pollution.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Not on the Planning Commission, though, right?


MR. PAUL:  No.  Sorry about that.  Maybe I’ll get on the Planning Commission.  Anyway, my family moved to Bakersfield in 1948.  And between years 1948 until I graduated from high school in 1960 and went away to Cal Poly and came back, I recall that you could see the mountains here, and it was a beautiful valley.  Dairies had nothing to do with the air contamination that we have.  When they opened I-5 in the middle ‘60s, our contamination, our air pollution started.


Now I hear a lot of people blaming dairies for the current air pollution problems, it’s all the traffic, the influx of population.  So there are many other issues besides just dairies.  The dairies have been here.  One time there were six dairies right here in Wasco.


Mr. Frantz, who just spoke, his grandfather was a dairyman.  He had his own dairy right here.  They’ve long disappeared because of growth.


You make several statements why the dairy people hadn’t came into city councils to talk to city councilmen, city managers.  I’d like to state, I have here in front of me the Wasco Union School District’s local secured property tax payers list.  The top 20 tax payers by property assessed evaluation, I doubt if one of these property owners have came to this city.


Farmland reserves:  If you talk farmland reserves, Premiere Partners Farmland, EOG Resources, Certus(?) USA, Primex Farms.  Primex Farms recently built a large pistachio processing plant out in Wildwood.  Jackson Perkins, they’ve probably been coming here from time to time.  Sunworld.  Nucco.  Thomas Dimler, which is the egg processor.  Sunshine Agriculture.  Denny’s Nurseries.  Whiteside Dairy.  Whiteside Dairy is a dairy located on Scofield in Kimberlina.  He contributes almost $6 million in assessed valuation to our bonding capacity for our school district.  And it goes on. 


Mr. Pearson stated that dairies stopped growth.  If you look at Chino, dairies haven’t stopped growth.  That’s why the dairies are moving here, because of the growth.  There’s such a large demand for subdivision.  When a dairy can sell a little 50-acre plot for $20 million, he wants to come up here.


Now most of these dairies we’re talking about, that are coming here have bought land several years past. 


But anyway, it didn’t stop the growth in Chino.


Anyway, I’d like to say that they are working on all these new processes, and I think you’ll let the county go through its EIR reports, the CEQA reports, and let’s do a fair and balanced evaluation before we make any decisions.


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Roy Sharp.


ROY SHARP:  Good evening, Senator.  I’m from Tulare County.  And I would like to share a few things from my experience.  


We started waste management in our swine operations which were some of the first confined animal operations in this area.  Beginning in 1972, when we first started, we had grown … and this is in swine basically, which is even a more contemptuous situation than the dairy cow.  We have facts and figures from our operations based on anaerobic digestion … and I’m not here to sell anaerobic digestion.  But there are so many holes in the scientific “information” that comes up, that it’s really a scary situation.


The slide that showed the age of some of the scientific work, is a perfect example.  I’ll bet you there isn’t one of the people involved in making these regulations that has any idea of what Royal Farms has done in Tulare County.  It’s part of EPA’s methane digester program.  We’ve been written up all over the country.  We’re in EPA’s work and so forth.  But there isn’t a one of the people who make the regulations that are familiar with any of it.  And that’s what scares me about having these regulations set up through non-active information.

We take 5,000 parts per million of BOD level in our lagoon, and that’s just like a sewage plant.  And through our system it comes out at 25 to 50 parts per million, which is almost clean enough to go into an EPA requirement.  We eliminate ammonia.  We produce methane gas.  All of the things that are important to this environmental problem are documented, but they’re not looked at.  You talk about lining all of these lagoons, we know that you don’t have to line a manure lagoon.  It will not allow water or penetration into the underground water.

We have our original hog operation.  It would ten times the concentration of one of these dairies.  And we put that effluent on 25 acres of trees.  For 20 years, feds came into to monitor our water supply, the groundwater, and there was no contamination.  These are things that I think should be looked at and are not being looked at.

Anaerobic digesters, as an example, have many promoters.  But you’ll find a 90 percent failure because they’re not done correctly.  And they’re not done correctly because they don’t go back and look at the basics on these things.


Everybody is interested in the elimination of pollution.  It was mentioned here today that the slice of the pollution that the dairies were attributed to, was a very large piece of pie.  But that pie was the controllable air pollution, not the total air pollution.

And you know as well as anybody else, that the majority of the air pollution comes from the San Francisco Bay Area, and it comes through this area.  To actively try to pin the blame on the dairy industry is a very big fallacy.  And I think it needs to be looked at much more carefully than it has.


We went to a meeting about a month ago with the Air Quality Board in Bakersfield.  And it was stated by one of them, if I remember correctly, that this 1,950 pounds of VOC that a dairy produces, is equivalent to 300 cars.  Now if you look at 300 cars in relationship to a 1,950 cow dairy, where do you go for the pollution?  You have to go to the cars.

The reason that everything is going to the dairy or to agriculture, is because it’s the least able to protect itself and therefore, air quality and water quality, in order to sustain themselves, have to concentrate on what they think they can control.  And that’s a very dangerous situation.


Why do dairies come to Kern County?


It’s one of the three greatest agricultural counties in the world.  Why wouldn’t a dairy want to come here where they have the water, the feed, and so forth?  The fact that the pollution is here is not a fault of the dairy, and I think that’s an extremely important factor.


And I’d be glad to answer questions at any other time.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you, Roy.  Did you bring your fan club with you Roy?


MR. SHARP:  No.  I don’t know any of these people.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Roy, I think what we’ll do if we could, is if we could get your name and number and we’ll take out some of those Air Board people and do a tour of your place.  How’s that?  Will that work?


MR. SHARP:  We’ll discuss it.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  We can discuss it.  You’ve got to clean it all up before we get there, right?  Okay.


Estella Luna.


ESTELLA LUNA:  Good evening.  My main concern is –


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Good evening.  And you’re here from?


MS. LUNA:  Here, in Wasco.  We used to live in Bakersfield and we decided that the air quality wasn’t good enough.  My whole family suffers from sinus.  So we decided to move out in the country.  But there are some dairies out there.  Mainly where we live, it’s where they’re planning all these new dairies.  


The air is just unbelievable.  I mean, dust all over.  Flieswe cannot go outside without a fly swatter.  We have different fly catchers.  It’s just tremendously … the smell, you cannot have a picnic.  It’s just so disgusting, the smell.

We bought property out there just to invest in something that we thought would be healthy for our children, for our families.  It’s turning to be really a headache, and also a very smelly situation.


So I’m here to comment about it and kind of give my support to those people that are opposing the project, because I do oppose it.  My whole family opposes it.  And I just feel that something could be done.

The pollution as it is, a lot of members here are blaming the cars, different situations, but I don’t think the cattle would help with what the situation is at the current time.


So I thank you very much.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you for coming.  Ignacio Moralez.


IGNACIO MORALEZ:  Hello, Senator Dean Florez, members too, councilmen.  Thank you for coming.  My name is Ignacio Moralez.  I live at 1540 Sunset, here in Wasco.  I consider myself fairly new here in Wasco.  I only have four years living here.  My wife is originally from here.  And a wonderful community.  Excellent.  I love it.


Prior to living here, I lived, roughly about 30 years in the city of McFarland.  And McFarland has some dairies right around it, especially one right next to 99 and Sherwood.  I lived one block away from it, basically.  So 30 years experience of basically knowing what farms are.  


I want to be neutral here.  I don’t want to say I’m opposed, I’m against, because there are certain issues that I think we can find that we can probably find a solution to this.

Basically my experience over there in McFarland:  Horrendous smell.  Barbecues, the flies were over, definitely.  In respect to water contamination or anything like that, everybody knows, McFarland has had extensive water issues in regards to figuring out its problem in cancer—zero.  One of the best waters that that city has.  So many tests have been given out.  So for the dairy, I give them that.


In respect to the people, the dairy people, they’re wonderful people.  Excellent.  I met some wonderful classmates that were from there.  Not against them.  Nothing at all.


But, it is true, that when I used to live in McFarland, one of the things that did occur was, I used to work for the recreation and park district there, and I used to work for a local Chevron station that was there, and a lot of the people that would come out Highway 99 would basically get out their door and say, Oh my god, what’s the smell, and this and that.  And basically, we had to tell them that just a little ways from here was a dairy, and a couple of dairies surrounding McFarland.

And so I don’t know if McFarland used the cows for it’s population in order to get some money, but basically that was seen to be the problem that McFarland was dealing with, especially the close proximity of this particular dairy that was there that’s now making McFarland a very … having a difficult time of having them relocate.  You know, it’s not even a quarter mile away from where I used to live, or from the city, and to get them to say, Can you move shop and just go an extra four miles away?  No.  It’s who was here first—McFarland, or was the dairy here first, is an argument that happens over there.


I would not like to see that happen in Wasco when Wasco starts growing and starts annexing land and a sphere of influence continues to grow.  I think that’s the 20/20 plan right there, that I see on there.  Maybe I’m wrong.  But the thing is, is that that growth will eventually get there and my thing, yes, if you look at the map, we already have the yellows that have been represented by us, but now we’re getting the blues that are the proposals, and they’re getting closer to Wasco instead of going out.


I was wondering if possibly enforcement on behalf of the county, I’m very shaky about it.  I would imagine they’re going to do what Tulare has done and basically drop it on the laps of the code enforcement.  And we all know that the county, even though each individual code enforcement is doing its very best to do what little resources it has, is probably going to take the burden of this, and what’s going to happen?  They’re not going to be enforcing anything.  If anything, they’re going to get slapped on the hand if any violations exist.  Resource is the thing.

The planning development here has spoken in regards to CUPs.  I’m interested to know what are those conditional use permits going to do in respect to when a city gets close enough to that proximity of a dairy?  Are they going to have the same hassle as the city of McFarland is having for its growth?  I don’t know.

Enforcement, again, I don’t trust it.  I’m sorry.  There’s too much.  Too vast amount of land.

So I’m just thinking, possibly a solution is that these dairymen, which I’m pretty sure they’re hard workers, well respected individuals, who have a positive or a good sense of trying to bring something to the community, if the land that they purchase, well great.  Grow your alfalfa.  Grow your whatever it is.  But what about … Kern County leads all the way west beyond 5, where there’s no population; there’s no sprawl, urban sprawl or anything like that.  Why not put the cows over there?  Grow your alfalfa; grow yourself over here.

I don’t know.  Maybe I’m way off with saying something like that.  But the thing is, is that there’s going to have to be some kind of a fair game here.


Mr. Watson, I heard him on TV, something about it’s revenue.  It’s money for the county.  And so I see only dollar signs coming to the Board of Supervisors thinking.  But they’re not thinking, but they’re not thinking and they’re not representing me.  My city council is representing me.  I don’t feel that I’m getting proper representation from the Board of Supervisors.  Now I’m coming learn that there’s a Planning Commission that exists and ideally, the Planning Commission may make the final decision.  And if not, it shoots to the Board of Supervisors if there is some form of appeal of some sort.  And so I think our representation has to be met.


And I thank you for bringing that up.  Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Joe Campbell.  Is there anyone else after this?  Then we’ll close with Renee Nelson.


JOE CAMPBELL:  Well I’ve been around a day or two, and I’ve hauled a few dairies.  I started out hauling the Compton, Artesia, Belmont, Bellflower, Wasco, Chino, now they’re coming here.  Twenty-five, 30 years ago, _______ Dairy.  The first big dairy that came to this country.  


There’s pros and cons to all of this thing that’s going on.  And all the pollution can’t be blamed on the damn dairy.  I loaded out here by my house, which a dairy will be on my place on Wildwood Avenue.  This morning at 4:30, I get up on top a load of hay, damn near passed out.  Get in the truck to drive to Pixley to the dairy right next to the damn pit where the water is at, and get up on top of a load of hay and breathe pretty damn good.  Unload that tie of hay and come down the rope and unload it.  So now if the dairies are that bad, why, when I’m loading right out here in my backyard with the dust and whatever is in the air is so bad?  Well part of this pollution is coming because of the roadsides and the trucks.

And I would like to inform the people that are, you don’t think these dairies are coming here, well that’s fine.  You don’t think it, but every morning it’s them dairies, I can’t go there and unload sometimes because why?  The same machine that has the forks on it to take the hay off, no, it’s got the manure bucket on it.

And all them walking floor trailers that are coming from there to down here to load almond hulls and cottonseed and all that bullshit, they have got manure in them.  And the manure is coming right out here.  So you’re going to get the manure.  That’s all that develops this country.

I brought manure years ago when I worked for Howard Hay Company.  Brought it right out of Chino.  Bring it here; put it on the ground; made this country.  It’s what makes this country.  It’s manure, not chemical fertilizers.


So, you got pollution here.  You got dust.  Everybody wants their fields nice and clean _____ we don’t want no weeds.  You got irrigators who don’t want to ride on the pavement.  They want to run along the end of the row and look at their water.  They don’t want to go 10mph, they want to go 20. 


I live in the situation where you have to change your cooler pads every damn month.  Why?  Pollution.  Dust.


Okay, if you’re going to make the side of the road nice and slick, well get up at 3:00 in the morning and put some water on the damn thing and put a crust there so when the truck goes down there 60mph, you don’t have all this.  


See, Mother Nature is pretty smart.  Right out here on 46 Highway—turn off on Bitter Water Road.  Run 70mph with a set of cow trailers.  You never see that much dust.  Why?  There’s grass on the side of the road and they mow it.  Pretty simple.

It’s not the dairy.  A feedlot, yes.  Cattle move around at night.  Evening time comes, go to Harris.  See what problem they got.  Milk cows, she’s too damn big to stir around.  Heifers, calves, yeah, go to Pond Heifer Ranch, got a little dust.  But the dairy itself, I’ve been hauling there too long.


When I was a little kid I’d sit on the haystack and watch them build Disneyland, unloading hay.  Why the dairies aren’t there?  Because money pushed them out. 


I have an uncle owned Downey Shower Door Company.  Down in Downey, the dairy sold out for enough money to Wal-Mart to come up there and build that one 30 years ago, or how long it was.  There at Delano, it’s got all the glass in the front.  My uncle come up and put the glass in it.  It’s economics.


They can sell down there and come up here and buy enough ground.

Why do the dairymen want to come here?  Where the hell have they been getting their hay for 30 years?  Buttonwillow, Wasco, Shafter.  Do you think they’re going to move to Timbuktu?  That they don’t know about the ground, or they don’t know about the hay, or they don’t have no feed duct?  Now we’ve got all these walking floor trailers, their silage is going down.  Where does it come from?  Oh, it’s Wasco.  Or it’s this.  Or it’s that.  Or it’s so and so.  Well, when they get in the car and drive up here, well I want to go over there and see. 


To me, it’s economics.  You got the good ground.  You got cheap water with Semi-Tropic Water District.  They bought some of this ground.  Yeah, they’re not dumb.  They bought in here and some of these people have owned this ground for six to eight years.  Why the hell are you going to come down here to the city council meeting and raise dust for?  She’d just get right in the back door and over here and let’s get started boys.  Be smart.  You know.  How do you get grease to the wheel?  Who squeaks the loudest?


Thank you.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you very much.  Renee Nelson.  I think this will be our last public comment.  Thank you.


RENEE NELSON:  Thank you, Senator Florez.  Renee Nelson.  Boy.  Wow.  He had a lot of good points, I have to say that.  I’m just here to make a couple of clarifications to Mr. Wass’ comments.  And I’m going to refer to a letter.

This is from the Kern County Dairy Technical Advisory Committee Final Report, April 2001, Volume 3, Supplemental Information, from Section 1, Supplemental Air Quality Information.  And this is a letter from the Air Resources Board.  Mr. Michael Fitzgibbon is the manager of Emission Inventory Analysis Section Planning, a technical support division.  And the letter is to Mr. Gary Conover, Director of Government Relations, Western United Dairymen; February 21, 2001.  I think you’ll find it a little bit interesting.


On November 28, 2000, Air Resources Board staff met with you, Manuel Conja, Roger Isim and several dairy representatives in Modesto to discuss air quality issues related to dairies.  At that meeting you requested ARB develop a conceptual dairy research work plan that describes the short and long term research needed to better understand the impacts of dairies on air quality in California.

I don’t have that information, but what I do have is a little blip from the conceptual dairy research work plan … this is January 4, 2001.  And in it, it says:  In addition to producing about 50 pounds of milk daily, an adult dairy cow produces approximately 100 pounds of solid and liquid waste each day.  And I won’t go into the rest of it.  But I believe that Mr. Wass said 17 pounds.  That’s a lot of difference of the effluent categories.


And I’d also like to, just for the record, comment if the county is going to reformulate and bring back the Dairy Technical Advisory Committee, perhaps they could change the makeup of the committee a little bit.

It was my opinion only, of course, and I represent no one else at this time, that the committee was heavily influenced by the Dairy Industry themselves, and therefore the advice that was sent to the board was weighed by their concerns and issues. Unfortunately the advice was sent back to staff and not taken by the committee because the committee recommended to continue with the by-right dairies, and obviously that was not something that was beneficial to the county.


Thank you so much.


SENATOR FLOREZ:  Thank you.  Well, I want to thank the public for sitting through, now, almost a 4-hour meeting.  And I appreciate the comments.

I will let you know that the transcripts will be available from our committee.  And I’m not sure, Larkin, how soon, but they will be available soon.  If you have any additional comments, please make sure our office gets them before we close the book on this particular hearing.  


And I will say, that it has been very enlightening.  I think there were some issues here that we need to continue to work on.  And I appreciate everyone’s time.  And Mr. Mayor, thank you very much for allowing us to use your chambers.

We stand adjourned.
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